
STATE OF NEVADA

BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR SOCIAL WORKERS (BESW)
4600 Kietzke Lane, Suite C121, Reno, Nevada 89502

775-688-2555

PUBLIC NOTICE OF BOARD MEETING

Friday, January 8, 2021 9:00 AM

To maintain government transparency & protect public safety, Governor Steve Sisolak signed an
emergency directive related to the suspension of the requirement that there must be a physical
location designated for meetings of a public body where members of the public are permitted to
attend and participate in-person. BESW, pursuant to this Executive Order, has found an alternative
via teleconference for the public to participate without having to be physically present. Supporting
materials are available electronically at the BESW website: http://socwork.nv.qov/board/Mtqs/

Some members of the Board may be attending the meeting and other persons may listen to the
meeting and provide testimony, through a simultaneous telephonic conference call that will be
conducted utilizing Zoom.

The Board of Examiners for Social Workers is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.

Join Zoom Meeting
https:llus02web.zoom.us1i18857791 61 90?pwd=UGIxRDQ2ZWs2V3U4d3NnQIJRVINLZzO9

Meeting ID: 885 7791 6190
Passcode: 768915
One tap mobile
+1 6699006833,,8857791 61 90#,,,,*76891 5# US (San Jose)
+125321 58782,,8857791 61 90#,,,,*76891 5# US (Tacoma)

Dial by your location
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York)
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington D.C)
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

Meeting ID: 885 7791 6190
Passcode: 768915
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.uslu/kr7RaLIS7

To learn more about ‘Joining a Meeting’ using ZOOM, please view a brief YouTube:
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=hlkCmbvAHQQ#action=share.

Please Note: The Board of Examiners for Social Workers may address agenda items out of sequence, combine
the agenda items, pull or remove the agenda items, in order to aid the efficiency or effectiveness of the meeting
or to accommodate persons appearing before the Board. The Board may continue agenda items to the next
meeting as needed. (NRS 241 .020)

Public comment is welcomed by the Board and will be heard at the beginning of the Board meeting following the
Call to Order and Roll and at the end of the agenda prior to the adjournment of the Board meeting. Public
comment may be limited to three (3) minutes per person. The Board meeting Chair may allow additional time
to be given a speaker as time allows and at his! her sole discretion. Once all items on the agenda are completed
the meeting will adjourn. Prior to the commencement and conclusion of a contested case or a quasi-judicial
proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an individual, the Board may refuse to consider public
comment. See NRS 233B. 126.



Board of Examiners for Social Workers
Board Meeting, January 8, 2021
Page 2 of 3

AGENDA

1. Call to Order and Roll.

2. Public Comment.
Note: No vote may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter itself has been
specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action may be taken. (NRS 24 1.020). Public comment
may be limited to three (3) minutes.

3. Board Operations:

A. Review and Discussion of Board Meeting Minutes for November 13, 2020. (For Possible
Action).

B. Review and Discussion of October 31, 2020 Financials and the November 30, 2020
Financials with Audit Adjusting Entries. (For Possible Action).

C. BESW v. Clarence Parrott, LSW (Settlement — Voluntary Surrender) (For Possible
Action).

D. Discussion of Application Software Implementation. (For Discussion Only).

E. Review and Discussion of Data Migration Plan. (For Possible Action).

F. Review and Discussion of Independent Regulatory Bodies Administrative Collaborative
Proposal (For Possible Action).

i. Adoption of Reporting Requirements Guidelines Document (For Possible Action).

ii. Discussion of Occupational Licensing Boards Report (For Discussion Only).

G. Review and Discussion of Amendment to Rural Regional Behavioral Health Policy Board
Bill. (For Possible Action).

H. Executive Director’s (ED) Report (For Discussion Only).
i. December 2 Healthcare Workforce Data Collection — Handout: Health Workforce

Data Collection in Nevada through the Licensure Renewal Process
ii. December 1Qth Administrative Collaborative Meeting re: Licensee Data Collection --

Handout: Legislation Veterans Summary of Recommendations;
iii. Strategic Plan Update — Handout: BESW Strategies 2021 — 2023;
iv. Pending Litigation Matter in the United States District Court for the District of Nevada

- Case No. 3:20-cv-571-MMD-WG;
v. Future Agenda Items! Ideas; and

vi. Next Board Meeting is 9a.m. Friday, March 12, 2021.

4. Public Comment.
Note: No vote may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter itself has been
specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action may be taken. (NRS 241.020). Public comment
will be limited to three (3) minutes.

5. Adjournment.



Board of Examiners for Social Workers
Board Meeting, January 8, 2021
Page 3 of 3

Please contact Karen Oppenlander, LISW at (775) 688-2555 for information regarding the meeting. Supporting
materials can be accessed electronically at the BESW website: http://socwork.nv.qov/board/Mtgs//.

The Board may convene in closed session to consider the character, alleged misconduct, professional
competence or physical or mental health of a person. (NRS 241 .030)

This notice has been posted at the office of the Board of Examiners for Social Workers; the Board’s Web Site
www.socwork.nv.Qov; and the State of Nevada’s Public Notice Website http://notice.nv.qov.



3A
Meeting Minutes



STATE OF NEVADA

BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR SOCIAL WORKERS
(BESW)

4600 KIETZKE LANE, SUITE C121, RENO, NEVADA 89502
775-688-2555

Board Minutes - Friday, November 13, 2020

Call to Order and Roll. Vikki Erickson called meeting of the Board of Examiners for Social Workers (BESW)
to order at 9:05 am. A Roll Call was taken of those in attendance that included Board members Vikki
Erickson, Jacqueline Sanders, Abigail Klimas and Susan Nielsen (arrived at approximately 9:25 am.); Nick
Vander Poel (Capitol Partners); Board Counsel! DAG Asheesh Bhalla; Board Staff Karen Oppenlander.
Monique Harris had an excused absence.

Erickson moved to Item 2: Public Comment. Hearing no comment, she moved to Item 3 Board
Operations 3A - Review and Discussion of Board Meeting Minutes for September 11, 2020. (For Possible
Action).

Jacqueline Sanders made a motion to approve the Board Meeting Minutes for
September 11, 2020, seconded by Abigail Klimas. Roll call vote: Erickson — Aye; Klimas
— Aye; Sanders — Aye. Motion passed.

Erickson proceeded to Item 3B - Review and Discussion of BESW Audit for Year Ending June 30 2020.
(For Possible Action).

Starting with good news, Oppenlander began the audit presentation referring to the last page where the
auditors concluded by saying, “We did not find any financial weaknesses of a magnitude to justify an
inclusion within our audit report”. She went on to draw the Board’s attention to key points.

First, she asked attendees to turn to the section: Financial Highlights at the top of page three of the audit.
Here it indicates that the Board’s revenues were $469,592 which was a $67,950 increase from the prior
year and the Board’s current assets at June 30, 2020 were $148,722, an increase of $56,540 from the prior
year. She indicated that the Board’s audit is basically comprised of three components: 1) government—
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. Over
time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the Board is improving or deteriorating.

Then, she moved forward to the Government-wide financial analysis at the top page five. There, she
pointed out that current liabilities exceeded current assets by $82,390 as of June 30, 2020. Board liabilities
were higher at $111,675 on June 30, 2019 last year; so, this is an improvement of $29,285.



After, she moved to page six where Board members were asked to look at changes in net position. The
Board’s actual expenses were less than budgeted due to lower salaries and operating expenses. We had
an improvement with an increase in Net Position of $5,314 which is significant as we had a decrease in
our Net Position in 2019 of minus $81,718. The fee increases we are now starting to receive are beginning
to put us in a positive net position so that we can begin to balance our budget. The financial performance
of the Board as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds. As the Board completed the year, its
governmental funds reported a General fund balance of $134,828.

Next, Oppenlander referred to page eight of the audit which includes the BESW portion of the State of
Nevada pension liability. These numbers are provided to BESW by the state for inclusion in the audit. She
covered the various uses of the term “deferred” and was specific about $9,580 listed for Deferred License
Income. This amount was for fees that were paid for before 07/01/2020 and licenses that were issued
after 07/01/2020. Of those, licensees paid for application fees, military discounts, and endorsement fees
for a total of $9,850 of income.

She then moved to the “Notes to the Financial Statements”. In Note 1, page fifteen, the audit highlights,
“The General Fund is the Board of Examiners for Social Worker’s primary operating fund”. It accounts for
all financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another
fund. This section explains the BESW modified accrual basis for accounting and details how amounts can
be spent.

Moving to pages 18-19, she emphasized that under the section “Fund Balance”, the audit classifies fund
balances. Oppenlander stated that she would like for the Board to better understand this section prior
to the Board setting aside reserves: (1) Non-Spendable Fund Balance —This classification includes amounts
that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form, such as inventory or prepaid
items, or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. (2) Restricted Fund Balance — This
classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes externally imposed by creditors or
imposed by law. (3) Committed Fund Balance — Portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific
purposes imposed by majority vote of the Board (highest level of decision-making authority). Any changes
or removal of the specific purpose requires majority action by the Board that approved the original action.
(4) Assigned Fund balance — Portion of fund balance that the Board intends to use for specific purposes.
(5) Unassigned Fund balance — Portion of fund balance that has not been assigned to another fund or
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. Moving forward, we will
want to be able to have concrete examples of what all of the categories might specifically represent.

She called out specifics in Note 1 - page 19 re: Deferred Revenue and Deferred license income. And then
moved to Note 5 — page 21 where the audit nicely lays out the explanation of pension plan and post-
employment obligations to BESW. Moving forward to Note 6 — page 26 she highlighted “Compensated
Absences” where the audit reflects vacation and sick leave. Last, the audit summarizes everything. Finding
most of the audit to be self-explanatory, Oppenlander completed her presentation of the audit highlights
and offered to answer questions or potentially ask the auditor to answer questions. There were no
questions. Erickson thanked her for working with the Board on changing the way it works financially.

A motion to approve the BESW audit for the year ending June 30 2020 was made by
Jacqueline Sanders and seconded by Abigail Klimas. Roll call vote: Ericson — Aye,
Sanders — Aye, Klimas — Aye, Nielsen — Aye. Motion passed.



Erickson moved forward to Item 3 — C Review and Discussion of First Quarter Financials through
September 30, 2020. (For Possible Action). Oppenlander reported on highlights from the first quarter of
the fiscal year (25%) for month ending September 30t. We are on target with our income. Expenses are
at 18% so we are significantly under budget. We are doing much better at anticipating the expenses for
credit card processing than we did during our first year with online processing of payments for licensing
renewals.

A motion to approve the first quarter financials through September 30 2020 was made
by Abigail Klimas and seconded by Jacqueline Sanders. Roll call vote: Erickson — Aye,
Nielsen — Aye, Klimas — Aye, Sanders — Aye. Motion passed.

Next, Erickson asked Oppenlander to cover Item 3 — D Review and Discussion of Board Specific Training!
Orientation Fulfillment and Related Updates. For the record, Oppenlander stated that (i) the Attorney
General’s Office has put together an online Boards and Commissions Training. Deputy Attorney General
(DAG) Bhalla provided a link for new Board members Klimas and Sanders to access training materials
online and both have completed Board training pursuant to AB457. Bhalla added that there are a couple
of ways to bring additional training to the Board. His preference is to schedule a separate open meeting!
litigation training. There is now a specific exemption for this that was passed during the last legislative
session. We can have training on administrative hearings, on open meeting, on public records, on ethics
whenever it is convenient for the Board members. Since we have statutory authority to do these types of
trainings in a closed meeting, this allows board members to ask a diverse array of questions. (ii)
Oppenlander commented that everyone including staff have received an updated 2020 Resource Binder;
(iii) New Board members were informed of ASWB Training Options that will be made available based on
COVID scheduling and they were given a link for self—registration with ASWB); (iv) a Reporting Timeline
Handout was included in the Board packet. This timeline indicates Board responsibilities that go beyond
the laws and legislation listed in the resource binder. DAG Bhalla suggested that the Board be made
aware of the additional reports that we must adhere to as an independent regulatory body. (v) Handout:
Sunset Committee Letter Mailed to Independent Regulatory Bodies on October 22, 2020; BESW received
mail for the Board re: encouragement from the Sunset Committee for increased diversity that reflects the
diversity of the State; as well as a request for the Board to encourage compliance with controlling health
standards for the Coronavirus. (vi) Federal Legislation Handout re: Filing to Protect State Licensing Boards
from Antitrust Damages. This handout came from one of our ASWB colleagues in Asheboro South Carolina
to let us know that know that Federal Legislation has been filed to protect State Licensing Boards from
antitrust damages.

Erickson moved forward to Item 3 - E Review and Discussion of Independent Regulatory Bodies
Administrative Collaborative Proposal (For Possible Action). Oppenlander discussed a proposal that
BESW has received that reflects a potential Professional and Occupational Licensing Boards agreement
for collaboration. As the BESW Board has previously discussed, there is a legislative discussion going on
about the placement of independent regulatory agencies under the Division of Business and Industry. This
proposal suggests a collaboration as an alternative avenue. The actual process for collaboration will be
determined by the participating boards; i.e. Zoom meeting, etc. The invitation came from Loretta
Pontoon, the Executive Director of the Nevada Board of Occupational Therapy. She said, “The idea for
Board approval is to formalize the agreement to reinforce the commitment to adherence to
administrative requirements under question by the Governor’s office and the Legislature. It would show
that we take their concerns seriously and are being pro-active in addressing the concerns. There is
strength in numbers instead of trying to address issues independently. We are coming up on a Legislative



Session where there will be multiple bills regarding Boards including oversight or consolidation under a
state agency. The actual collaborative efforts will be through the meetings of the ED’s, reported back to
the individual Boards to document the value of collaboration. There is no financial impact or time
commitment required of Board members”. When I asked Loretta Pontoon more questions about this
collaborative, she went on to say that Board approval is not required for us to participate in the
collaborative meetings as support and sharing of ideas is important to us all. Oppenlander added that
from her perspective, she preferred to bring this idea to the Board to learn if joining an effort like this
seems like a good fit for us.

Erickson asked Vander Poel for feedback. He commented that collaboration is never a bad thing. If there’s
opportunity to take advantage of it, if you have a good partner, you’ve got to run with it instead going
through the fight alone. For example, when we have allies on policy that we’re trying to move forward --

if we can move it forward together, it seems like it goes a lot smoother. If there’s an opportunity, then
take advantage of it. A clarifying question was asked about whether this effort would be in place of the
independent boards potentially falling under Business and Industry. We did not have an answer for this
question. Vander Poel talked more about this topic in relation to when he previously worked for Governor
Gibbons and oversaw the 200+ Boards and Commissions with over 2000 appointments. At that time, the
state looked at ways to combine Boards for efficiencies. At that time one of the recommendations was to
bring the Boards “in house” but then there’s a financial side to it. It’s a double-edged sword and it’s
complicated. Its been a very interesting conversation behind the scenes. Over time, it’s been led in part
by the Governor’s office and more recently by Director Brown when he was at Business and Industry, and
then later by Director Reynolds when he took over. Based on the budget cuts, they may not want to take
on this task right now.

Erickson asked DAG Bhalla for feedback. He said that this is an issue that has been revisited a number of
times. It’s a recurring theme and there are various ways that it can go. He did not express insight as to
whether there will be a push for this right now given the current issues of funding and other legislative
considerations. Each state has a lot of authority to handle this in different ways. As the Director
mentioned earlier in the North Carolina Dental Board of Examiners case, this is a seminal case that governs
the parameters of what we do here as a Board. It gives states various authority to set up these Boards as
they see fit as long as there is affirmative state policy and active supervision by the Governor of the
Executive Branch; those are the two prongs that are the guardrails that the law provides. So, how the
Legislature wants to do that is really up to them. People are discussing it and there is always a search for
more efficiency amongst state agencies. But, we have to account for all of the differences and there is a
lot to consider.

Sanders commented that she requires more information to consider this as an action item right now and
wants to know if we are considering a collaboration on a specific item, specific tasks, for how long, and to
what degree. Erickson agreed with her. DAG BhalIa responded to a procedural question and Oppenlander
agreed that she could attend meetings to bring back further information to the Board about how the
gathered state agencies are cooperating and discussing collaborative issues of interest.

A motion to was made for Executive Director Oppenlander to attend Administrative
Collaborative meetings and bring back information to the Board by Jacqueline Sanders
and seconded by Abilgail Klimas. Roll call vote: Erickson — Aye, Sanders — Aye, Klimas
— Aye, Nielsen — Aye. Motion passed.



Following, Erickson turned to Item 3 — F Review and Discussion of Rural Regional Behavioral Health
Policy Board Development of Draft Bill Request that includes BESW new LMSW Level of Licensure (For
Possible Action). Oppenlander discussed a Bill Draft Request that has been assembled by the Rural
Regional Behavioral Health Policy Board (RRBHPB) with the overall purpose to improve both the ability of
new professionals in Nevada to achieve licensure, as well as for seasoned professionals who carry licenses
from out of state to practice in Nevada more easily. The coordinator for this effort is willing to come to a
future Board meeting if you would like her to discuss the BDR’s concept. However, for today — we want
to talk about Attachment 1: Proposed Language for the Addition of the “LMSW” Licensure.

The RRBHPB has offered to assist BESW to achieve parity with other states by introducing the LMSW
category as part of their BDR during the upcoming Legislative Session. It was the result of BESW being
asked to participate with the RRBHPB’s effort to streamline the hiring of health professionals in rural
Nevada. From our perspective, we were already planning to add the LMSW category that was approved
again and most recently by the Board in March 2020 for pursuit in the 2021 Legislative Session. Miranda
Hoover and Mendy Elliott from Capitol Partners had met with the Board earlier this year to discuss
reintroducing this new license type. Hoover drafted the Board’s bill. When the opportunity came for us
to work with the RRBHPB, Hoover introduced BESW language for inclusion into their BDR. Following, the
BDR was sent to the Legislative Counsel Bureau (LCB) for wordsmithing. Sandy Lowery worked with LCB
to refine the language in the attachment.

Our intent is to add the Masters social work license to our NRS for a variety of reasons including to fulfill
a mandate from ASWB. ASWB gave BESW 5 years to add this category (by June 30 2021) so that we would
be funneling people into distinct ASWB examinations based on their qualifications. We have tried to get
this category added before but we were not successful in the 2011 Legislative Session. And again in 2019,
we tried to add NAC changes that would direct potential licensees to take the appropriate examinations.
However, LCB did not approve the NAC changes in 2019 and then told us that we would have to
accomplish this through NRS changes in 2021.

With the Rural Regional Behavioral Health Policy Board taking the lead, we are hopeful that they can help
us to generate sufficient interest with our Legislators next year that will help BESW to add this category
successfully. Oppenlander summarized by stating that BESW’s intent is to: (1) add the Master Social Work
license to achieve parity with other states making it easier for people to come from other states to Nevada
as an LMSW; and (2) fulfill a mandate from ASWB to comply with their requirements by June 30th, 2021.

Vander Poel stated that it would be a better avenue to go with the RRBHPB BDR as it is hitting a lot of
good points in one bill. The Legislature is going to be very busy with budget cuts and dealing with
numerous issues. By coming together, were making this easier. He believes that Assemblywoman Maggie
Carlton will be thankful that we took this approach instead of having to deal with four different BDR5.
Well be able to all be at the table and say, “This helps our industry”. This is a clear opportunity and a
good approach for BESW to better deal with reciprocity; especially as there was an Executive Order from
Governor Sandoval to assist military families that come to Nevada. And I think we will be welcomed when
the Legislature convenes and this bill is introduced.

Sanders put forth a thoughtful yet complex statement! question in reference to licensure that will need
to be researched with ASWB. Essentially, the question deals with specifics about how BESW will transition
into the fourth LMSW licensing category as it relates to ASWB testing. Erickson commented and thought
that she may have an opportunity at an upcoming meeting to get feedback on this matter. She added
that there is a push for the LMSW category across the country and that were an outlier in the US for this



(one of several states). Also, it is one of the requirements that ASWB has for BESW to continue being
compliant with their testing. She went on to say that she understands what Sanders is saying but doesn’t
know how to respond to that question today without gathering further information. After additional
discussion, a motion was offered for consideration.

A motion was made Abigail Klimas for Inclusion of the LMSW Level of Licensure into the
bill being submitted by the Rural Regional Behavioral Health Policy Board, seconded by
Susan Nielsen. Roll call vote: Erickson — Aye, Klimas — Aye, Nielsen — Aye, Sanders —

Nay. Motion was passed by majority.

The Board moved forward to Item 3 — G Review and Discussion of Board Member Designee for ASWB
Annual Meeting of the Delegate Assembly to be Held Online, November 16—20, 2020 (For Possible
Action). Oppenlander stated that the Annual Meeting of the Delegate Assembly for ASWB is next week.
These meetings are intensive business meetings during which the ASWB Delegate Assembly discusses the
overall operation of the association, from financial records to examination administration to long-range
goals. This year the meeting will be held online next week from Monday through Friday. She didn’t
realize the timing of the meeting, so the Board did not have this agendized at the Board’s September
meeting in order to select a delegate. When she realized the situation, Open Meeting Law permitted her
to contact two Board members to discuss this matter. Due to their background with ASWB, she chose to
speak to the Board President Erickson and Vice President Harris about who might be the Board’s delegate
this year. Also, she knew that ASWB had a cutoff date for delegate registration so that they could send
out their materials ahead of time; therefore, we couldn’t wait until today to decide. Both Erickson and
Harris conferred. Erickson was able to schedule time to attend the online meeting next week on behalf
of the Board. So, due to the timing issue on this matter, Oppenlander trusted that the Board will affirm
this decision at today’s meeting.

A motion was made Jacqueline Sanders for Vikki Erickson to be the Nevada Delegate
for the ASWB Annual Meeting being held virtually November 16th through 20th 2020,
seconded by Abilgail Klimas. Roll call vote: Klimas — Aye, Sanders — Aye, Nielsen, - Aye,
Erickson — Aye. Motion passed unanimously.

Erickson moved forward to Item 3 — H Executive Director’s Report (For Discussion Only). Oppenlander
updated the Board stating that she had attended the (i) Certified Contract Manager (CCM) Re-Certification
on October 8thl; (ii) the ASWB Virtual Administrators Forum on October 23rd which is how she came to
realize there was a Delegate meeting; (iii) participated in a national OWINN/ AIR Interview on November
2nd Re: Current and Future Challenges, Regional Differences, and Licensing Rules and Processes
Applicable to Clinical Social Workers (LCSW), Independent Social Workers (LISW), and Social Workers
(LSW); (iv) DAG Bhalla updated the Board on a pending litigation matter in the United States District Court
for the District of Nevada - Case No. 3:20-cv-571-MMD-WG stating that there’s not much to report at this
time. That matter has had a motion to dismiss filed; the court transferred the case from Idaho to Nevada;
a joint status update was filed with the court asking for guidance, and we are waiting to hear back; at this
time, there has been no guidance provided by the District Court; (v) Oppenlander discussed BESW
contracts including the (a) five year office lease that was approved by State Leasing Services and Board of
Examiners in October; (b) a contract with Computer Technical Services approved for desktop support
services approved in October; and (c) Lobbyist Contract that was awarded to Capitol Partners in
November; (d) and we can look forward to a progress report on the implementation of our application
software at our next Board meeting; vi. Next, she asked the Board for future agenda items! ideas beyond



the Administrative Collaborative and Potential Board Training(s); and last, she referred to (vii) a handout
with Board Dates for 2021 with the next Board Meeting scheduled for 9 am. Friday, January 8, 2021.

Item 4— Public Comment. Erickson asked for Public Comment. Hearing none, she asked for a motion
for Item 5 - Adjournment.

A motion was made for Adjournment by Abigail Klimas, seconded by Susan Nielsen.
After a roll call vote the motion passed unanimously.

The meeting adjourned at 10:48 a.m.

Minutes Respectfully Submitted by Karen Oppenlander.



3B
October Financials

November Financials



O
ct

o
b
er

F
un

d
B

al
an

ce

IN
C

O
M

E
40

00
0

R
E

N
E

W
A

L
F

E
E

S
41

00
0

A
PP

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

F
E

E
42

00
0

IN
IT

IA
L

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
E

E
4
3
0
0
0
’

E
N

D
O

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
F

E
E

44
00

0
PR

O
V

IS
IO

N
A

L
L

IC
E

N
S

E
F

E
E

S
45

00
0

R
E

N
E

W
A

L
L

A
T

E
F

E
E

4
6
0
0

0
’

R
E

S
T

O
R

A
T

IO
N

O
F

L
IC

E
N

SE
47

00
0

D
IS

C
IP

L
IN

A
R

Y
C

O
S

T
S

4
8
0
0

0
’

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

49
00

0
IN

T
E

R
E

S
T

T
ot

al
In

co
m

e
_

$
63

2,
23

5.
50

$
52

,6
86

.2
9

$
50

,3
19

.6
5

$
2,

36
6.

64
96

%
$

20
3,

42
7.

97
$

(4
28

,8
07

.5
3)

32
%

S
ub

-A
cc

ou
nt

T
ot

al
$

78
4,

78
3.

33
$

35
5,

97
5.

80

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

_
_
_
_

5
0
0
5

0
’

W
ag

es
28

8,
70

4.
00

24
,0

58
.6

6
18

,7
82

.5
2

5,
27

6.
14

78
%

76
,2

09
.1

4
-2

12
,4

94
.8

6
-
-

26
%

5
0
1
0
2
-

G
ro

up
H

ea
lt

h
In

su
ra

nc
e

4
5

,7
5

0
.0

0
3,

81
2.

50
3,

13
3.

20
67

9.
30

82
%

15
,1

66
.7

6
-3

0,
58

3.
24

33
%

5
0
1
0

3
’

In
s

R
eg

is
4
,1

6
0
.0

0
34

6.
67

45
0.

49
-1

03
.8

2
13

0%
2,

24
3.

24
-1

,9
16

.7
6

54
%

5
0
1
0

4
’

M
ed

ic
ar

e
4
,1

6
0
.0

0
34

6.
67

28
0.

21
66

.4
6

81
%

1,
11

2.
26

-3
,0

47
.7

4
27

%
5
0
1
0

5
’

P
E

R
S

-E
m

pl
oy

er
pa

id
4

0
,1

4
2

.0
0

3,
34

5.
16

2,
55

4.
12

79
1.

04
76

%
10

,1
89

.1
8

-2
9,

95
2.

82
25

%
5
0
1
0
6
’

U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t

In
s.

2,
50

0.
00

20
8.

33
12

7.
16

81
.1

7
61

%
60

3.
65

-1
,8

96
.3

5
24

%
50

30
0

‘
W

or
km

an
’s

C
om

p.
5,

00
0.

00
1,

25
0.

00
0.

00
1,

25
0.

00
0%

61
3.

06
-4

,3
86

.9
4

12
%

Su
b

A
cc

ou
nt

T
ot

al
$

3
9

0
,4

1
6
.0

0
$

33
,3

67
.9

9
$

25
,3

27
.7

0
$

8,
04

0.
29

76
%

$
10

6,
13

7.
29

-2
84

,2
78

.7
1

27
%

6
1
0
5

0
-

C
on

tr
ac

t-
L

ab
or

15
,0

00
.0

0
1,

25
0.

00
59

6.
00

65
4.

00
48

%
2,

51
6.

00
-1

2,
48

4.
00

17
%

6
1
1
0
0
-

C
on

tr
ac

t-
A

ud
it

or
10

,0
00

.0
0

83
3.

34
0.

00
83

3.
34

0%
0.

00
-1

0,
00

0.
00

0%
61

15
0

C
on

tr
ac

t-
L

eg
al

4
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
3,

33
3.

33
1,

31
2.

06
2,

02
1.

27
39

%
4,

47
6.

44
-3

5,
52

3.
56

11
%

6
1
2
0

0
’

C
on

tr
ac

t-
L

ob
by

is
t

37
,5

00
.0

0
3,

12
5.

00
1,

50
0.

00
1,

62
5.

00
48

%
6,

00
0.

00
-3

1,
50

0.
00

1 6
%

6
1
2
5

0
-

C
on

tr
ac

t-
P

ay
ro

ll
S

er
vi

ce
1,

50
0.

00
12

5.
00

0.
00

12
5.

00
0%

19
2.

50
-1

,3
07

.5
0

13
%

6
1
3
0

0
’

C
ou

rt
R

ep
or

ti
ng

.
4
,5

0
0
.0

0
37

5.
00

0.
00

37
5.

00
0%

0.
00

-4
,5

00
.0

0
0%

6
1
3
5
0
-

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
7,

00
0.

00
58

3.
33

0.
00

58
3.

33
0%

0.
00

-7
,0

00
.0

0
0%

6
1
4
0

0
’

L
C

B
1,

50
0.

00
12

5.
00

0.
00

12
5.

00
0%

0.
00

-1
,5

00
.0

0
0%

6
2
0
0

0
-

O
pe

ra
ti

ng
C

o
st

s
7,

50
0.

00
62

5.
00

23
5.

10
38

9.
90

38
%

1,
06

2.
63

-6
,4

37
.3

7
14

%
62

05
0

P
ri

nt
in

g
7,

00
0.

00
58

3.
34

77
4.

80
-1

91
.4

6
13

3%
1,

96
8.

86
-5

,0
31

.1
4

28
%

6
2
1
0

0
-

C
op

yi
ng

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0%
0.

00
0.

00
0%

6
2
1
5
0
-

T
O

R
T

C
la

im
F

un
d

85
0.

00
70

.8
3

14
.6

5
56

.1
8

21
%

14
.6

5
-8

35
.3

5
2%

62
20

0
R

en
t

21
,3

50
.0

0
1,

77
9.

17
1,

75
0.

00
29

.1
7

98
%

6,
95

0.
00

-1
4,

40
0.

00
33

%
6
2
2
5

0
’

B
an

d
G

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

50
0.

00
41

.6
7

0.
00

41
.6

7
0%

0.
00

-5
00

.0
0

0%
62

30
0

R
ec

or
ds

S
to

ra
g

e
75

0.
00

62
.5

0
50

.0
0

12
.5

0
80

%
20

0.
00

-5
50

.0
0

27
%

62
35

0
P

o
st

ag
e

7,
50

0.
00

62
5.

00
60

.2
4

56
4.

76
10

%
1,

70
9.

08
-5

,7
90

.9
2

23
%

6
2
4
0
0
’

T
el

ep
ho

ne
2,

00
0.

00
16

6.
66

46
9.

04
-3

02
.3

8
28

1%
1,

39
2.

89
-6

07
.1

1
70

%
6
2
4
5

0
’

In
te

rn
et

3,
00

0.
00

25
0.

00
41

4.
99

-1
64

.9
9

16
6%

96
9.

92
-2

,0
30

.0
8

32
%

62
50

0
C

om
pu

te
r

S
of

tw
ar

e
4
8
,5

0
0
.0

0
3,

63
6.

36
35

9.
99

3,
27

6.
37

10
%

9,
41

2.
49

-3
9,

08
7.

51
19

%
6
2
5
5
0
’

T
ra

ns
cr

ip
ti

on
0
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0%

12
7.

75
12

7.
75

0%

50
5,

12
5.

00
27

,6
00

.0
0

69
,0

00
.0

0
12

,5
00

.0
0

2,
00

0.
00

2,
00

0.
00

0.
00

4,
00

0.
00

10
,0

00
.0

0
10

.5
0

42
,0

93
.7

5
2,

30
0.

00
5,

75
0.

00
1,

04
1.

66
16

6.
67

16
6.

67
0.

00
33

3.
34

83
3.

33
0.

87

41
,7

87
.5

0
1,

45
0.

00
3,

43
7.

50
1,

00
0.

00
0.

00
-2

00
.0

0
20

0.
00

0.
00

2,
57

0.
00

74
.6

5

30
6.

25
85

0.
00

2,
31

2.
50

41
.6

6
16

6.
67

36
6.

67
-2

00
.0

0
33

3.
34

-1
,7

36
.6

7
-7

3.
78

99
%

63
%

60
%

96
% 0%

-1
20

% 0% 0%

30
8%

85
80

%

16
0,

82
7.

50
10

,0
70

.0
0

23
,9

47
.5

0
4,

78
5.

00
35

6.
25

-1
00

.0
0

20
0.

00
0.

00
3,

20
5.

00
13

6.
72

-3
4

4
,2

9
7

5
0

-1
7,

53
0.

00
-4

5,
05

2.
50

-7
,7

15
.0

0
-1

,6
43

.7
5

-2
,1

00
.0

0
20

0.
00

4
,0

0
0
.0

0
-6

,7
95

.0
0

12
6.

22

32
%

36
%

35
%

38
%

18
%

-5
% 0% 0% 32
%

13
02

%



62
60

0-
C

O
V

ID
19

U
N

K
1,

00
0.

00
83

.3
3

0.
00

83
.3

3
0%

0.
00

-1
,0

00
.0

0
0%

63
05

0-
D

ue
s

&
R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

0_
D

o
0.

00
0_

D
o

0.
00

0%
0.

00
0.

00
0%

63
10

0
-

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l
D

ue
s

(A
SW

B
)

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0%
0.

00
00

0
0%

6
4
0
5
0
-

B
an

k
C

h
ar

g
es

12
0.

00
10

.0
0

0.
00

10
.0

0
0%

12
.0

0
-1

08
.0

0
10

%
64

10
0

-
C

re
di

t
C

ar
d

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

7,
00

0.
00

58
3.

34
72

6.
67

-1
43

.3
3

12
5%

2,
54

7.
51

-4
,4

52
.4

9
36

%
6
5
0
0
0
-

H
os

t
F

un
d

1,
00

0.
00

83
.3

3
0.

00
83

.3
3

0%
0.

00
-1

,0
00

.0
0

0%
66

05
0-

In
S

ta
te

T
ra

ve
l

7,
00

0.
00

58
3.

33
0.

00
5

8
3

3
3

0%
0.

00
-7

,0
00

.0
0

0%
6
6
1
0
0
-

O
u

to
fS

ta
te

T
ra

v
el

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0%
0.

00
0.

00
0%

6
7
0

0
0
-

T
ra

in
in

g
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0%

0.
00

0.
00

0%
6
8
0
5
0
-

F
ur

ni
tu

re
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0%

0.
00

0.
00

0%
6
8
1

0
0
-

C
om

pu
te

rs
11

,5
00

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0%
0.

00
-1

1,
50

0.
00

0%

S
ub

A
cc

ou
nt

T
ot

al
$

24
3,

57
0.

00
$

18
,9

33
.8

6
$

8,
26

3.
54

$
10

,6
70

.3
2

44
%

$
39

,5
52

.7
2

$
(2

04
,0

17
.2

8)
16

%

T
ot

al
E

xp
en

se
s

$
63

3,
98

6.
00

$
52

,3
01

.8
5

$
33

,5
91

.2
4

$
18

,7
10

.6
1

64
%

$
14

5,
69

0.
01

$
(2

0
2

,7
0

9
.7

8
)2

3
%

N
et

P
os

it
io

n
*

-1
,7

50
.5

0
38

4.
44

16
,7

28
.4

1
5
7
,7

3
7
.9

6
N

et
P

os
it

io
n

-A
dj

us
te

d
*

1
5
0
,7

9
7
.3

3
2
1
0
,2

8
5
.7

9
‘

N
et

Po
si

tio
n

In
co

m
e

an
d

E
xp

en
se

s
w

ith
ou

t F
un

d
B

al
an

ce
N

et
Po

si
tio

n
-

A
dj

us
te

d
In

co
m

e
an

d
ex

pe
ns

es
w

ith
pn

or
ye

ar
Fu

nd
B

al
an

ce

C
A

SH
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S
C

he
ck

in
g

V
1

7
7

.7
4

5
7

5
S

av
in

gs
V

V
V

V
5
,0

7
0
9
7

C
D

V
V

V
V

25
,4

36
.9

8

T
ot

al
C

as
h

B
al

an
ce

V

-

$
20

8,
25

3.
70



N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

A
nn

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

FY
20

12
1

$
15

0,
51

5.
74

M
on

th
ly

M
on

th
ly

V
ar

ia
nc

e
V

ar
ia

nc
e

-
N

ov
em

be
r

-
N

ov
em

be
r

D
ol

la
rs

P
er

ce
n
t

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

50
05

0-
W

ag
es

50
10

2-
G

ro
up

H
ea

lth
In

su
ra

nc
e

50
10

3-
In

s
R

eg
is

50
10

4
M

ed
ic

ar
e

50
1

05
P

E
R

S
-E

m
pl

oy
er

pa
id

50
10

6-
U

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t
In

s.

50
30

0-
W

or
km

an
’s

C
om

p.

S
ub

A
cc

ou
nt

T
ot

al

61
05

0-
C

on
tr

ac
t-

L
ab

or

61
10

0
C

on
tr

ac
t-

A
ud

ito
r

61
15

0•
C

on
tr

ac
t-

L
eg

al

61
20

0-
C

on
tr

ac
t-

L
ob

by
is

t

61
25

0
C

on
tr

ac
t-

P
ay

ro
ll

S
er

vi
ce

61
30

0-
C

ou
rt

R
ep

or
tin

g

61
35

0-
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

61
40

0-
LC

B

62
00

0-
O

pe
ra

ti
ng

C
os

ts

F
u

n
d

B
al

an
ce

M
on

tly
B

ud
ge

t
M

on
th

ly
A

ct
ua

l
A

nn
ua

l
Y

ea
r

to
A

nn
ua

l
V

ar
ia

nc
e

D
at

e
D

ol
la

r

42
%

A
nn

ua
l

V
ar

ia
nc

e
P

er
ce

n
t

IN
C

O
M

E
40

00
0-

R
E

N
E

W
A

L
F

E
E

S
5
0

5
,1

2
5

.0
0

4
2

,0
9

3
.7

5
36

,7
50

.0
0

5,
34

3.
75

8
7
%

1
9

7
,5

7
7

.5
0

-3
0

7
,5

4
7

.5
0

39
%

41
00

0-
A

PP
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
FE

E
2
7
,6

0
0
.0

0
2

,3
0

0
.0

0
1
,6

5
0
.0

0
6
5
0
.0

0
72

%
1
1
,7

2
0
.0

0
-1

5
,8

8
0

.0
0

42
%

42
00

0-
IN

IT
IA

L
L

IC
E

N
SE

FE
E

6
9
,0

0
0
.0

0
5
,7

5
0
.0

0
3

,7
9

2
.5

0
1

,9
5

7
.5

0
66

%
2

7
,7

4
0

.0
0

-4
1
,2

6
0
.0

0
:

40
%

43
00

0-
E

N
D

O
R

SE
M

E
N

T
FE

E
1

2
,5

0
0

.0
0

1
,0

4
1

.6
7

1
,1

2
5

.0
0

-8
3

.3
3

10
8%

5
,9

1
0
.0

0
-6

,5
9

0
.0

0
47

%
44

00
0-

PR
O

V
IS

IO
N

A
L

L
IC

E
N

SE
FE

E
S

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
6
6
.6

6
2

8
1

.2
5

-1
1

4
.5

9
16

9%
6
3
7
.5

0
-1

,3
6

2
.5

0
32

%
45

00
0-

R
E

N
E

W
A

L
LA

TE
FE

E
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
6
6
.6

7
0.

00
1
6
6
.6

7
0%

-1
0
0
.0

0
-2

,1
0

0
.0

0
-5

%
46

00
0-

R
E

ST
O

R
A

T
IO

N
O

F
L

IC
E

N
SE

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0%

2
0
0
.0

0
2

0
0

.0
0

0%
47

00
0-

D
IS

C
IP

L
IN

A
R

Y
C

O
S

T
S

4
,0

0
0

.0
0

3
3
3
.3

3
0.

00
3
3
3
.3

3
0%

0.
00

-4
,0

0
0
.0

0
0%

48
00

0-
M

IS
C

E
L

L
A

N
E

O
U

S
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

8
3
3
.3

4
1

,8
9

0
.0

5
-1

,0
56

.7
1

22
7%

5
,0

9
5

.0
5

-4
,9

0
4

.9
5

51
%

49
00

0-
IN

T
E

R
E

ST
10

.5
0

0
.8

8
6

2
.0

7
-6

1
.1

9
7
0
5
3
%

19
8.

79
18

8.
29

18
93

%

T
ot

al
In

co
m

e
$

52
,6

86
.3

0
$

45
,5

50
.8

7
$

7,
13

5.
43

86
%

$
24

8,
97

8.
84

$
(3

83
,2

56
.6

6)
39

%

S
ub

-A
cc

ou
nt

T
ot

al

$
63

2,
23

5.
50

$
78

2,
75

1.
24

$
39

9,
49

4.
58

28
8,

70
4.

00
2
4
,0

5
8
.6

7
1

9
,5

2
2

.9
6

4,
53

5.
71

8
1
%

9
5

,7
3

2
.1

0
-1

9
2

,9
7

1
.9

0
33

%
:

45
,7

50
.0

0
3
,8

1
2
.5

0
3
,1

3
3
.2

0
6
7
9
.3

0
8
2
%

1
8
,2

9
9
.9

6
-2

7
,4

5
0

.0
4

40
%

4,
16

0.
00

3
4

6
.6

6
4

5
0

.4
9

-1
0

3
.8

3
1

3
0

%
2

,6
9

3
.7

3
-1

,4
6

6
.2

7
65

%
:

4,
16

0.
00

3
4

6
.6

7
2
7
5
.9

3
7
0
.7

4
80

%
1
,3

8
8
.1

9
-2

,7
7

1
.8

1
33

%
40

,1
42

.0
0

3
,3

4
5
.1

7
2
,5

5
4
.1

2
7
9
1
.0

5
76

%
1
2
,7

4
3
.3

0
-2

7
,3

9
8

.7
0

32
%

2,
50

0.
00

2
0
8
.3

3
9

8
.9

5
1
0
9
.3

8
47

%
7
0
2
.6

0
-1

,7
9

7
.4

0
28

%
5,

00
0.

00
0
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0%

6
1

3
.0

6
-4

,3
8

6
.9

4
12

%

.
$

39
0,

41
6.

00
$

32
,1

18
.0

0
$

26
,0

35
.6

5
$

6,
08

2.
35

81
%

$
13

2,
17

2.
94

-2
58

,2
43

.0
6

34
%

15
,0

00
.0

0
1

,2
5

0
.0

0
6
2
0
.0

0
6
3
0
.0

0
50

%
3
,1

3
6
.0

0
-1

1
,8

6
4

.0
0

21
%

10
,0

00
.0

0
8
3
3
.3

3
0
.0

0
8
3
3
.3

3
0%

0.
00

-1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
0%

40
,0

00
.0

0
3

,3
3

3
.3

4
0
.0

0
3

,3
3

3
.3

4
0%

4
,4

7
6

.4
4

-3
5

,5
2

3
.5

6
11

%
37

,5
00

.0
0

3
,1

2
5
.0

0
1

,5
0

0
.0

0
1

,6
2

5
.0

0
48

%
7

,5
0

0
.0

0
-3

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

20
%

1,
50

0.
00

12
5.

00
0
.0

0
12

5.
00

0%
:

1
9
2
.5

0
-1

,3
0

7
.5

0
13

%
4,

50
0.

00
3

7
5

.0
0

0
.0

0
3
7
5
.0

0
0%

0
.0

0
-4

,5
0

0
.0

0
0%

7,
00

0.
00

5
8

3
.3

3
0.

00
5
8
3
.3

3
0%

,
0.

00
-7

,0
0

0
.0

0
0%

1,
50

0.
00

,
12

5.
00

0
.0

0
1
2
5
.0

0
0
%

0
.0

0
-1

,5
0

0
.0

0
0%

7,
50

0.
00

6
2
5
.0

0
4

9
9

.6
8

12
5.

32
80

%
1,

56
2.

31
-5

,9
3
7
.6

9
21

%



62
05

0
Pr

in
tin

g
‘

7
0
0
0
0
0

5
8
3
3
3

1
8
2
2
9

4
0
1
0
4

31
%

2
15

1
15

4
8
4
8
8
5
’

31
%

62
10

0
C

op
yi

ng
0.

00
0.

00
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
%

0
.0

0
O

.0
0

0%
62

15
0

T
O

R
T

C
la

im
Fu

nd
85

0.
00

7
0

.8
4

16
.1

1
5

4
.7

3
23

%
3
0
.7

6
-8

1
9
.2

4
4%

62
20

0
R

en
t

21
,3

50
.0

0
1

,7
7

9
.1

6
1

,7
5

0
.0

0
2

9
.1

6
98

%
8

,7
0

0
.0

0
-1

2
,6

5
0

.0
0

4
1
%

62
25

0
B

an
d

G
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
50

0.
00

4
1
.6

7
0
.0

0
4
1
.6

7
0%

0
.0

0
-5

0
0
.0

0
0%

62
30

0
R

ec
or

ds
S

to
ra

ge
75

0.
00

6
2

.5
0

5
0
.0

0
12

.5
0

80
%

2
5

0
.0

0
-5

0
0
.0

0
33

%
62

35
0

P
os

ta
ge

7,
50

0.
00

6
2
5
.0

0
4
4
0
.3

5
1
8
4
.6

5
70

%
2

,1
4

9
.4

3
-5

,3
5

0
.5

7
29

%
62

40
0

T
el

ep
ho

ne
2,

00
0.

00
1
6
6
.6

7
1
4
7
.0

4
19

.6
3

88
%

1
,5

3
9
.9

3
-4

6
0
.0

7
77

%
62

45
0

In
te

rn
et

3,
00

0.
00

,
2
5
0
.0

0
2
0
7
.8

0
4

2
.2

0
83

%
1
,1

7
7
.7

2
-1

,8
2
2
.2

8
39

%
62

50
0

C
om

pu
te

r
S

of
tw

ar
e

48
,5

00
.0

0
3
,6

3
6
.3

6
8

9
.9

9
3

,5
4

6
.3

7
2%

9
,5

0
2

.4
8

-3
8

,9
9

7
.5

2
20

%
62

55
0

T
ra

ns
cr

ip
ti

on
0.

00
0
.0

0
2
7
.2

5
-2

7
.2

5
0%

15
5.

00
1
5
5
.0

0
0%

6
2

6
0

0
C

O
V

ID
19

U
N

K
1,

00
0.

00
8

3
.3

3
6
2
.7

9
2
0
.5

4
75

%
6
2
.7

9
-9

3
7
.2

1
6%

63
05

0
D

ue
s

&
R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

0.
00

0
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0%

0.
00

0
.0

0
0%

63
10

0
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l

D
ue

s
(A

SW
B

)
0.

00
0.

00
0
.0

0
0.

00
0%

0.
00

0
.0

0
0%

64
05

0
B

an
k

C
ha

rg
es

12
0.

00
10

.0
0

0.
00

10
.0

0
0%

12
.0

0
-1

0
8
.0

0
10

%
64

10
0

C
re

di
t

C
ar

d
P

ro
ce

ss
in

g
7,

00
0.

00
5
8
3
.3

3
7

2
2

.8
6

-1
3

9
.5

3
12

4%
3

,2
7

0
.3

7
-3

,7
2

9
.6

3
,

47
%

65
00

0
H

os
t

Fu
nd

1,
00

0.
00

8
3

.3
4

0
.0

0
8

3
.3

4
0%

0.
00

-1
,0

0
0

.0
0

0%
66

05
0

In
S

ta
te

T
ra

ve
l

,
7,

00
0.

00
5
8
3
.3

3
0
.0

0
5
8
3
.3

3
0%

0.
00

-7
,0

0
0

.0
0

0%
66

10
0

O
ut

of
S

ta
te

T
ra

ve
l

0.
00

0.
00

0
.0

0
0.

00
0%

0.
00

0
.0

0
0%

6
7
0
0
0

T
ra

in
in

g
0

.0
0

0.
00

0
.0

0
0.

00
0%

0.
00

0
.0

0
0%

6
8
0
5
0

F
u
rn

it
u
re

0
.0

0
0.

00
0
.0

0
0.

00
0%

0.
00

:
0
.0

0
0%

68
10

0
C

om
pu

te
rs

11
,5

00
.0

0
0.

00
3
7
.8

8
-3

7
.8

8
0
%

3
7
.8

8
-1

1
,4

6
2

.1
2

0%

S
ub

A
cc

ou
nt

T
ot

al
$

2
4
3
,5

7
0
.0

0
$

1
8
,9

3
3
.8

6
$

6
,3

5
4

.0
4

$
1
2
,5

7
9
.8

2
34

%
$

4
5
,9

0
6
.7

6
$

(1
9
7
,6

6
3
.2

4
)

19
%

$
51

,0
51

.8
6

$
32

,3
89

.6
9

$
18

,6
62

.1
7

63
%

$
17

8,
07

9.
70

$
(1

96
,3

55
.7

4)
28

%
T

o
ta

l
E

x
p
e
n
se

s
$

63
3,

98
6.

00

N
et

P
os

it
io

n
*

-1
,7

5
0
.5

0
1

,6
3

4
.4

4
1
3
,1

6
1
.1

8
7
0
,8

9
9
.1

4

N
et

P
os

it
io

n
-

A
dj

us
te

d
*
*

1
4

8
,7

6
5

.2
4

2
2

1
,4

1
4

.8
8

*
N

et
P

os
it

io
n

In
co

m
e

an
d

E
x
p
en

se
s

w
it

ho
ut

F
un

d
B

al
an

ce

**
N

et
P

os
it

io
n

-
A

dj
us

te
d

In
co

m
e

an
d

ex
p
en

se
s

w
ith

pr
io

r
ye

ar
F

un
d

B
al

an
ce

C
A

S
H

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S

C
h

ec
k

in
g

1
9

1
,2

5
7

.9
3

Sa
vi

ng
s

I
4,

71
9.

97
C

D
I

25
,4

36
.9

8

T
o

ta
lC

as
h
B

al
an

ce
$

22
1,

41
4.

88



3C
Settlement Agreement - Parrot



1 BEFORE THE STATE OF NEVADA,

2 BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR SOCIAL WORKERS

3 STATE OF NEVADA, BOARD OF
EXAMINERS FOR SOCIAL WORKERS, Case No. G20-O1

Petitioner,
5 vs. ) VOLUNTARY SURRENDER IN LIEU OF
6 CLARENCE E. PARROTT, #5108-S, OTHER DISCIPLINARY ACTIOW

7 Respondent.

8 I, CLARENCE F. PARROTT wish to voluntarily surrender my license number 5108-S in

9 lieu of other disciplinary action by the Board. I voluntarily and knowingly admit the following

10 facts:

11 1. The Board received a complaint regarding my competence to practice social

12 work.

13 2. Without conceding any of the allegations contained in that complaint, I wish to

14 surrender my license in lieu of proceeding to a formal disciplinary hearing in this matter and/or

15 in lieu of any other disciplinary action that the Board may impose after a hearing.

16 Upon the Board’s acceptance of my voluntary surrender of my social workers license, I

17 will not have a license to practice social work, and, I must immediately stop practicing as a

18 social worker in the State of Nevada.

19 I am aware of, understand, and have been advised of the effect of this voluntary

20 surrender, which I have carefully read and fully acknowledge. No coercion has been exerted

21 on me to voluntarily surrender my license. I acknowledge my right to an attorney at my own

22 expense. I have had the benefit at all times of advice from competent counsel of my choice.

23 The surrender of my social work license is done voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently.

24 I am aware of my rights including the rtght to a hearing on any charges and/or

25 allegations, the right to examine witnesses who would testify against me, the right to present

26 evidence in my favor and call witnesses on my behalf, or to testify myself, the right to contest

27 the charges arid allegations, the right to reconsideration, appeal, or any other type of formal

28 judicial review of this matter, and any other rights which may be accorded to me pursuant to
Aitømey Genera)
tOO N. Carson SI.
Carson COy. NV I

897014717



1 the Nevada Administrative Procedures Act and the provisions of Chapter 622A of the Nevada

2 Revised Statutes and Chapter 641B of the Nevada Revised Statutes and the Nevada

3 Administrative Code. I voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waive the foregoing rights in

4 return for the Board’s acceptance of the voluntary surrender of my social worker license in lieu

5 of other disciplinary action.

6 While the Board staff is prepared to put on a case based on the allegations contained

7 in the complaint and I am prepared to vigorously defend these allegations, I have instead

8 chosen to surrender my license to resolve these matters.

9 I understand this voluntary surrender agreement is considered a disciplinary action and

10 as such will become part of my licensee file. I understand that this action is subject to the

11 public records law and that the Board may be required to make this voluntary surrender

12 agreement available for inspection. I understand this voluntary surrender agreement is

13 considered a disciplinary action and will be reported to any national repository, which records

14 disciplinary action taken against licensees, or any agency or another state, which regulates

15 the practice of social work. I understand that this surrender is effective the day it is accepted

16 by the Board. However, I agree to immediately cease and desist practicing as a social worker

17 in the State of Nevada.

18 This surrender does not prohibit me from re-applying to the Board for licensure as a

19 social worker in the future. However, before I may be re-licensed as a social worker, I must

20 meet the qualifications for licensure as described in NRS 641B. Such re-licensure is not

21 automatic and licensing is governed by the reasonable discretion of the Board. To be re

22 licensed as a social worker, I must re-apply to the Board as a new applicant for a new license

23 as a social worker. Pursuant to NRS 641 B.290(4), I may be required to take and pass any

24 required examination(s) prior to being relicensed.

25 III

26 III

27 III

Office of the 28 / II
Attorney General
100 N. Carson St.
Carson CIty, NV 2

89701.4717



1 I I, CLARENCE E. PARROTT, by my signature affixed below, agree with the foregoing

2 facts and representations and therefore choose to voluntarily surrender my social work license

3 number PY0385.
/ ‘2 — —t----_

4 Dated:

___ _______

C RENCE-PARROTT, Respondent

6 Dated:

____ ______

STATE OF NEVADA, BOARD OF
EXAMINERS FOR SOCIAL WORK

7

8 By:

_________________________ _____ ____

KAREN OP PEN LANDER Execut Director
9

10 Dated:

____________

STATE OF NEVADA, BOARD OF
EXAMINERS FOR SOCIAL WORK

11

12
By:

______________________________

VIKKI ERICKSON, Board President
13

Approved as to form:
14

AARON D. FORD
15 Attorney General

16
By: 5’.

17 AHEESHS.BHALLA
Deputy Attorney General

18 555 E. Washington Ave., Ste 3900
Las Vegas, NV 89101

19 (702)4863898
Attorneys for the Board

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

OIhcoIth 28
Attorney General
1OD Carson St

aroOn City, NV 3
89’D1.47t7



3D
Application Software Implementation



3E
Data Migration Plan



3F
Independent Regulatory Bodies

Administrative Collaborative Proposal



State of Nevada
Professional and Occupational Licensing Boards

Administrative Collaborative

Preface State of Nevada professional and occupational licensing Boards (Boards) are funded solely from
the fees received from the professions they regulate. The Boards are exempt from the State Budget Act
(NRS 353.005) and receive no funding from the State General Fund.

The Boards oversee various occupations and professions and are charged with the protection of the public
health, safety and welfare of the citizens in Nevada. The Boards provide the public and practitioners a
means by which they can pursue administrative legal recourse, in cases of questionable actions or practice.

The Boards independently conduct business in accordance with legislative, state and internal directives.
They are charged with compliance with existing and new legislative mandates, state administrative
requirements and establishing internal management systems. Small Boards face challenges due to limited
funding and staff resources.

The Boards are governed by additional laws and legislation outside their specific professions NRS sections;
and must adhere to those requirements in conducting their business and operations. A partial listing of
applicable laws include but is not limited to the following:

Title 17 State Legislative Department — NRS 21 8G Legislative Audits;

Title 18 State Executive Department - NRS 232A Appointments by the Governor to Public Bodies, NRS
232B Legislative Review of Public Agencies, NRS 233B Nevada Administrative Procedures Act

Title 19 Miscellaneous Matters Relating to Government and Public Affairs - NRS 241 Meetings of State
and Local Agencies (Open Meeting Law)

Title 23 Public Officers - NRS 281 General Provisions, NRS 28lA Ethics in Government; NRS 282
Official Bonds and Oaths and NRS 283 Resignations, Vacancies and Removals

Title 54 Professions, Occupations and Business - NRS 622 General Provisions, NRS 622A Administrative
Procedures and NRS 629 Healing Arts

In addition to State laws, the Professional and Occupational Licensing Boards have the responsibility to
adhere to specific requirements contained in the State of Nevada Administrative Manual (SAM).

Whereas, Professional and Occupational Licensing Boards have varying levels of experienced executive
staff who may benefit from opportunities for collaboration with experienced resources in administration
of professional and occupational regulatory Boards; and

Whereas, collaboration efforts may include but not be limited to:

• Consultation with experienced personnel working with professional and occupational regulatory
Boards;

• Joint training opportunities for Board members and staff
• Consulting on administrative requirements, and reporting of Board activities;
• Sharing of best practices and processes, procedures and administrative manuals;
• Reviewing current and proposed legislation pertaining to professional and occupational licensing

Boards as a whole;
• Any other matter deemed pertinent to the Boards.

9.4.20
Board Administrative Collaborative



Whereas, it has been determined that it is in the best interests of the State of Nevada and Professional and
Occupational Licensing Boards to enter into an Administrative Collaborative in order to provide a cost
effective and efficient means to enhance collaborative efforts and establish a structured means by which
Professional and Occupational Licensing Boards may increases adherence to state and legislative
requirements and strengthen the Professional and Occupational Licensing Boards’ administrative and
oversight functions.

There is hereby established the “Professional and Occupational Licensing Boards, Administrative
Collaborative” comprised of the Executive Directors or designated personnel of each participating Board
who shall be authorized to represent their respective Boards’ interests as participating Professional and
Occupational Licensing Boards.

Participation in the Administrative Collaborative may be terminated by any of the parties, at any time
upon 30 days written notice.

Now therefore in consideration thereof, the “Administrative Collaborative” shall become effective
upon approval by a minimum of three (3) Professional and Occupational Licensing Boards as evidenced
by signature below.

State of Nevada
Board of Examiners for Social Workers

Chair Dated

9.4.20
Board Administrative Collaborative



PROFESSIONAL & OCCUPATIONAL LICENSING BOARDS
ADMINISTRATIVE COLLABORATIVE

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

GUIDELINES



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Description Page No.

OVERVIEW 4

LEGISLATIVE AND STATE REQUIRED REPORTING

LOB Disciplinary Action and Licensure Reporting - NRS 622.100 5

National Practitioners Data Bank (NPDB) Reporting (Health Care Boards) 6

Regulation Reviews — NRS 233B.050 6

Legislative Sunset Subcommittee Review - NRS 232B.040 (Interim Session) 7

LOB Fiscal Note Analysis Division (Legislative Session) 7

Executive Branch Audit Committee (EBAC) - NRS 353A.090 7

Financial Audit / Balance Sheet Report - NRS 218G.400 8

Military/Veterans Information Reporting - NRS 622.120 9

BOARD MEETINGS / PUBLIC WORKSHOPS / REGULATORY HEARINGS

Agenda & Public Notice Posting — NRS 241 .015(4) 10

Public Workshop and Hearing Posting - Nevada Legislative Website 11

MISCELLANEOUS REPORTS TO STATE

Report of Employee/Salary Information 12

Fines/Penalties Remittance Report 12

Fee Revenue Information Report 13

Consultants Reporting - NRS 333.705(7) 14

State Inventory Report - NRS 333.220 14

CETS Summary Report - Contract Approvals — NRS 333.030 15

State Controller Business License Information - NRS 3530.1965 15
(SB21 Reporting)

Secretary of State — SilverFiume Licensing Information 16

P a g e 2



BOARD FINANCIAL REPORTS

Board Expenditure Review and Financial Statements - NRS 622.234 16

Financial Budget Report 16

Reserve Funds Report 16

BOARD ADMINISTRATIVE, PAYROLL AND BENEFITS REPORTS

Federal Payroll Reporting 17

Nevada Deferred Compensation Program - Payroll Contributions 17

Nevada Deferred Compensation Contributions Audit 17

Unemployment Insurance - Quarterly Reporting 18

Worker’s Compensation Insurance Payroll Audit 19

Secretary of State — Nevada State Business License 19

Public Employees Retirement System Reporting (PERS) 20

Elected Officials Listing Report - NRS 286.421(3) 20

Public Employees Benefit Program (PEBP) Reporting 20

Page 3



PROFESSIONAL & OCCUPATIONAL LICENSING BOARDS
ADMINISTRATIVE COLLABORATIVE

OVERVIEW

These reporting guidelines are intended to provide a general overview of the various
reporting requirements imposed by State and Legislative bodies pertaining to the
administration and activities of the Board and its operations.

Not all reports may be pertinent to every Board and additional legislative or state
reporting may be required of a Board overseeing a specific profession or occupation.

References to Nevada Revised Statute are provided for Legislative mandated reporting.

Each Board establishes their specific personnel and benefits structure specific to their
needs and operations. Reporting for Personnel/Payroll and Benefits will vary by Board
based upon its resources and personnel structure.

Page 14



LCB Disciplinary Action and Licensure Reporting - NRS 622.100

Requires each regulatory body to report and provide to the Director of the Legislative
Counsel Bureau a quarterly report that includes a summary of the following:

• Disciplinary action taken;
• Number of licenses issued;
• Total number of applications for licensure received;
• Number of applications rejected by the Board;
• Average number of days between the date of rejection of an application as

incomplete and the resubmission by the applicant of a complete application;
• A list of each reason given by the regulatory body for the denial of an application and

the number of applications denied by the regulatory body; and
• The number of applications reviewed on an individual basis by the regulatory body

Report Title:
Reporting To:
Time:

Report of Occupational Licensing Boards**
Legislative Counsel Bureau
Quarterly — Due the 20th day of January, April, July & October

Procedure: Website: http:!/www.leq.state.nv.us/
General Info >Reports of Occupational Licensing Boards
Administrator Log In

rz,s1,zuzv — £101 t-seporceu U U NOT rnOPOrTeO rioT roe/overT NOT rrepOrToO NOT r0000rred ncr 10020-non

913912020 j -— 0 0 57 130 56 0 0
613012020 2 66 23 67
3/31/2020 0 0 0 52 4 50 - 0
12/31/2019

- 0 0 0

9/30/2019 4 -o 0 97 9 89 0

total for all licens, types. The Board of 0000petiocca/ Therapy/las 2 license types.

Enter the information for each tab titled Disciplinary Actions, Licensing Totals, Denial
Totals. You must release all records upon completion of the data that has been
entered.

13 lvS:CHa&T00622-G0N000I -x 9 tlvto.tdetOccupaln 0 13 kv.cds 0101100 C6rnrl2r 0 +

0 B Ottj - wWW.legotte.cuu

Historic Data 2001-2008)

Reports of Occupational Licensing Boards

Adrninist,aton Login

Select a board; Occopational Therapy, The Board of

Quarters Reported by The Board of Occupational Therapy

Ao9. Days
Quaver Disciplinary LIcenses LIcenses Appiloatlons ApplicaBOes Appllnattons From Relented Report

600 Dale Ac/on, Denials Disqoallnoations Added Rensooed’ Received Re/noted Rentewed to Cosnpteta Year

vooa;; cncordn

o >

o 202
o 2019
0

SessIon Into SELlS Inborn Into Law Library General 1110 Couveel nur,au ennearet. Librory Assembly Sanale FAQ0
Vieos Schedoled Meeceus Pabli000ces Pnoposaln Enrplcym,nl OppornunlOes Gift Shop SITe Map ContacT Os Websile FeedbaCk I

62/20 N000r/a Logislebve Ccrrcol 001000

P by/TO llelPloivarch 0 /2) n t I ‘

P a g e 5



The Report of Occupational Licensing Boards required by NRS 622.100 is submitted by
LOB to the Legislative Commission.

**Failure to Report — NRS 21 8G.400 Audits: . Failure to complete the Report of
Occupational Licensing Boards will subject the Board to a mandatory Annual Audit in
lieu of submittal of a Balance Sheet or Biennial Audit.

National Practitioners Data Bank (NPDB) Reporting (Health Care Boards)

Disciplinary actions taken by the Board against licensees must be reported to the
National Practitioners Data Bank within 30 days of the date of the action. Administrative
citations and actions are not reportable to the NPDB.

Report Title: NPDB Reporting
Reporting To: National Practitioners Data Bank
Report Period: Within 30 days of Board Action

Procedure: Log-in to the NPDB; complete the electronic on-line reporting format and
submit. Retain a copy of the NPDB Report in the Complaint file and NPDB Report file.

Regulation Reviews — NRS 233 B.050

In addition to other regulation-making requirements imposed by law, each agency shall:

• Review its rules of practice at least once every 3 years and file with the Secretary
of State a statement setting forth the date on which the most recent review of those
rules was completed and describing any revisions made as a result of the review.

• Review its regulations at least once every 10 years to determine whether it should
amend or repeal any of the regulations. Within 30 days after completion of the
review, the agency shall submit a report to the Legislative Counsel for distribution
to the next regular session of the Legislature. The report must include the date on
which the agency completed its review of the regulations and describe any
regulation that must be amended or repealed as a result of the review.

Report Title: Board Review of Regulations Reporting
Reporting To: Secretary of State Legislative Counsel Bureau
Report Period: Every 3 Years Every 10 Years

Note: Rules of practice are operating procedures. Reports have not been requested or
submitted.

Procedures: Maintain documentation of all Board actions, regulations reviewed and any
law I bill requests developed. Upon request, compile and submit a report as
appropriate.

P a g c 6



Legislative Sunset Subcommittee Review - NRS 232B.040 (Interim Session)

The Legislative Commission shall conduct the review of agencies directed by the
Legislature to determine whether each agency should be terminated, consolidated with
another agency or continued.

Report Title: Sunset Review Reports
Reporting To: Sunset Subcommittee of the Legislative Commission
Report Period: At the request of the Subcommittee

Procedure: Sunset Review was last requested of Boards during the 2020 Interim
Legislative Session. Boards responded with the information as requested and provided
testimony at the scheduled hearings.

LCB Fiscal Note Analysis Division (Legislative Session)

Online fiscal note management system to help improve accessibility to legislative
information and the timeliness and quality of fiscal note preparation.

Report Title: Fiscal Note Analysis
Reporting To: Legislative Counsel Bureau
Report Period: Legislative Sessions

Procedure: Complete the Fiscal Notes Contact Form for each Legislative Session.
Once it has been approved you will be able to log into the Fiscal Note website. LCB will
send an email requesting your fiscal analysis of any bill that might have an impact to the
Board and/or the profession it regulates.

Executive Branch Audit Committee (EBAC) - NRS 353A.090

The Internal Audit Division of the EBAC may periodically request information of Boards
to determine the adequacy of their system of accounting, administrative control and
financial management systems.

Report Title: EBAC Report
Reporting To: Internal Audit Division of the Executive Branch Audit Committee
Report Period: At the request of the Audit Committee

Procedure: EBAC Audit was last conducted of Boards during the calendar year 2018,
with follow-up in 2019. Upon notification of audit, prepare and submit all requested
documentation.

EBAC Audits are in addition to any required annual/biennial outside audit or balance
sheet audits and may be specific to an area or program.

Page 17



Financial Audit! Balance Sheet Report - NRS 218G.400

Requires each regulatory board with revenue of $200,000 or more to be audited
annually or biennially by a certified public accountant (CPA). The audit report must be
filed with the Legislative Auditor and the Chief of the Budget Division by December 1st of
each year the audit is prepared.

Report Title: Board Financial Statement Audit
Reporting To: Legislative Counsel Bureau I Audit Division
Report Period: Due by December 15t•

Procedure: Once the Board’s fiscal year end financial statements have been approved
by the Board at a Board meeting, the finalized statements are then sent via email and
US mail to the LCB Audit Division and Governor’s Finance Office, Budget Division.

Regulatory boards with revenue under $200,000 may submit the State Balance Sheet in
lieu of an audit with supporting documentation to the Legislative Auditor and the Chief of
the Budget Division by December 1st of each year, as stated above.

**See exception for Failure to Report — LCB Licensing Report: Report of Occupational
Licensing Boards

61 - 0 - FR 2019 Balance lEwd 803’S i’-, S..o’SpabblIstE Ucciol - 0/old 7 4 — S >1

HOME INSERT DESIGN PAGE lOcUST REFERENCES FEOIIINIiS REVIEW 51115 Sign in

Cnd ---
——‘- or ISRncol

-

C0”bOIBOdl 12 A A A0 — 0’ 0 1. AaBbCoDd Aa8bCrDd AaBhC AgBI,Cc AsaDbCcO ds,MblloDd 408bLrRd

PS BIU HdngI )adnqd Ti EEl SbElEw R,nnpha

C1pbod S [cci 3 SlIMS S [ding

NEVADA STATE BOARDS

BALANCE SHEET

June 30. 2019

ASSETS

- Cecil — Ciseckiop ACCoccol S 54.S9 5

2. CCIII — 50555181 0000IIISI 132.01426

3. SicOrl-lonci Inverricleicls [See llsEifllCTiOflSl

_______________

4. 0115cr Assets AltarS schedolel Food .50/eli. N Espelsse 02.40203 5.23S 03

5. TOTAL ASSETS S i2950.64

I
LI&BILJTIES -IND FUND B-EL-..

6 0000lllsls Po’oble S 21510

7 Orlcer Llobjlstior 1.0410015 lClcedcllrl Deferred Recosslle S 6E.42S63. 69.29231

Payroll LiobiliiV 3’312

- Paid Tiscce QgLiobilllv 35295

Possoil Tax Lrobilrtv 36.11

8 TOTAL LIABILITIES 69.SOS.0i

9. FlInd cUloccor- Be8insrisr0 of Year S 116.293.19

9a.ni[s [011006 schedule) [50.604 34

9EEV27.i8d8W86(31iocEr scheduiei 169.95’ 50

p a g e 18



Military/Veterans Information Reporting - NRS 62Z120

Annual report to Interagency Council on Veterans Affairs on Military and veteran status
of applicants for license is required. A regulatory body shall collect information
regarding the number of veterans and service members who have:

• Applied for a license from the regulatory body
• Been issued a license by the regulatory body
• Renewed a license with the regulatory body

The forms used by the regulatory body must include the following language:

• Have you ever served on active duty in the Armed Forces of the United States and
separated from such service under conditions other than dishonorable?”

• Have you ever been assigned to duty for a minimum of 6 continuous years in the
National Guard or a reserve component of the Armed Forces of the United States
and separated from such service under conditions other than dishonorable?”

• Have you ever served the Commissioned Corps of the United States Public Health
Service or the Commissioned Corps of the National Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration of the United States in the capacity of a commissioned officer while
on active duty in defense of the United States and separated from such service
under conditions other than dishonorable?”

Report Title: Veteran/Military Information
Reporting To: Interagency Council on Veterans Affairs and

Nevada Department of Veterans Services
Report Period: Annually — Due by November 30th

Procedure: Create an excel spreadsheet with the collected information. Email the
information to both agencies as noted above.

P a e 9



BOARD MEETINGS / PUBLIC WORKSHOPS / REGULA TORY HEARINGS

Agenda & Public Notice Posting — NRS 241 .015(4)

All public bodies in the state who are required to post public notices must post their
notices on the Public Notice Website. The Department of Administration maintains a
central location/website for the posting of public notices.

Report Title: Public Notice Posting Website
Reporting To: Nevada Public Notice I Department of Administration
Report Period: No later than third 3d working day prior to meeting

Procedure: Login at https://notice.nv.gov
Enter the information relating to the agenda or public notice such as date, time, location
and the Boards website where the agenda or notice is posted.

Nevada Public Notice Hetne Entitles Pubic Oodles N05000 Halo envae000nta.ey000it log nfl Hoe

Post New Notice

Title

Tote of N000o

0 Enter a bOo that desorthos rho notice

Notice URL or Email Address

Eaatrple cop dyoraiesbaae gescter

o Enter thu URL of rho notice tueatnsr
etaonlel ad&eno eta contact parser, it newebslte eosts

Date Selector Time Selector AM PM Selector

0 Cccl trio eEoc. tier to Select 0 ttr-e

—Soleot AM or

0 Tiny. tire aboce boo to select a adt 0rPM

Public Body

Seert PIE! c Body—

o Choose tore Public Betty enrich bests desonbne the

nntorootth,ntlnboo

Notice Type

—Select NoEoe Swe—

0 *::co s Notine Type -tech boots desenbes rho caCre

nf the notice

Notice Status

o Choos, a States toe the nerve

‘Crari status nIl not display on to p.rbc Ste

0C’ek Ore above bar to revel a dat

P a g C 10



Public Workshop and Hearing Posting - Nevada Legislative Website

All public bodies in the state are required to post public notices of regulatory workshops
and hearings on the State Legislatures, Meetings and Workshops Website.

Report Title: Administrative Regulations Notices
Reporting To: Legislative Council Bureau
Report Period: Workshops - 15 days prior to meeting

Hearings - 30 days prior to hearing date

Procedure: Login at https:/!www.leq.state. nv. us and select Administrative Regulation
Notices. Enter the information relating to the agenda or public notice such as date,
time, location and the Boards website where the agenda or notice is posted.

10 q vrrirr -ooreenov;ce -- ‘jØ so
t Meesvgh/vire e

File bIn Vraru Favorite, Toots Help

Ge 94,r I hcrr:r - Share voice

m lDatabrr•logitecrrrvorn/ b5goirvd5Co;’ qcoruperroooi Cierri

- *NEVADALEGISLATURE k°L:

5ePq4?.BeeehdGeee,eer
OiiricdeBererQS.

Administrative Regulative Natives

Meesves eel Wedrshvpe

Celia cr0/c ‘rib See,,,,

‘2/22/hare eamed Oe,,,rd. e,bece..edeie.,,e

Neeiee He’.. Scoee,eyrereesiOpc, RrgcO,Oceo ,‘ 0,ethgAgerd.

rare C,’., P.2/n.e 5,eoe Or,. 0/rearm- 0,/ace Or 0/nra.roe l/adercre eon., -‘0,2/cr- eohomsae.. Qy,,,, ie. Vega ev egfle-ew.. In.’.,,, ten.,, 0,5cc 01 2e ieee.

r2/2s’eloe 02/roe rep’,,.., re,..ryei,/rc..

laos/lore 59.2/a Dbede eep.a, .01e’.,.,eeM He
M.e’.qHeie SdkeerPre&mertrepiCe ,e,eQ2,-re

artoeeaceice, or,. oe,rebay en SHFTS - eid,eeOe9&.c4 SOre.icr,5 erith eeerc eec,’,, ,orcrre,ro. no 259. Ted e.e.cg. ed, SOre are as Oege rot earle

ic/moore envoy, e.o.rrseerein.era odrese. Di. eeeSs...,

52/009 Hoer. tegrdererwrrtnec Blot-ia
rare ECrog,ct,0. lea, rob r.-rreorrr-. so mrve .o,SO,,croeeec&erloetdrnee,,seaacr rice, seed, eoebe.ceeaaHhrlsree

002000cc 10000 iieseerreO rep’crcs e.rageeeri reesrOrre. Deed

eer/cgrecrk, rioosr-rir,ivvrrr iC:’e1r “‘ierRego.eie/ircrgeencs,rrrgea9d.eccorroeiscer.ceoedD,9n2.roceO’r2-ir

0,50. ioo ro ccii Ccc, 200/2/ /r’c-e Ocr Crcrn Foe. Need, racer 0cc/sec 22 eero2eened.c-crd,neeuo,oree S kedr000Vrerro.eObc.c,crececcecceer 510 CO/me

i/COO/Sri WOoed 01,rHeiee000e
Meerieg eeoc, 5906 -‘./rcrreoc Ore, tog,e.O,e Pa/eec.

lueie99.ve 5r.O’dOt 5t.eerRt.,ecoor ie,mn Rcerr2r2epea.eCe*ce.eeoene&eese.S.esrarStrLW.d0gasr0e.r.0.g.reee2r2r.Reeeeedl

eevcg sec/ce O/c2/nIcp iv /2/Cr PriCe Cocer-rrcnreerspocer Rn 1L-ryereseed eO,ctee.Oe Vole Org.ce.ecc
iocrnritcireie7r’,rcr Fri c2/20r 5 Corr,Srccc Ccrrcbee TloVdsee,eoeerrr.drreioedirrcnorevr.rrie.,esueoee,&oldey,rrrbdi.roeqrccce. Oar/s-ic 20

LarcH, Onto,- a,

rcdsrccbrrcdse ‘/ercoc/i rare

P a g C ll



MISCELLANEOUS REPORTS TO STATE

Report of EmployeelSalarv Information

The Department of Administration requires all regulatory boards to provide personnel
information that includes the number of full-time employees, the salary and benefit costs
associated with each position for rate and assessment determination.

Report Title:
Reporting To:
Report Period:

Licensing Board Log for Rate Assessment
Department of Administration — Budget Division
Biennial Budget Period

Procedure: Complete the provided spreadsheet and email back to the assigned
budget analyst.

FineslPenalties Remittance Report

Unless specifically allowed to be retained by Board statute, fines/penalties imposed
from disciplinary hearings are to be deposited with the State Treasurer for credit.

Fines/Civil Penalties do not include legal and investigative costs reimbursements
imposed through a disciplinary process.

Reporting To:
Reporting Period:

Office of the State Treasurer
Quarterly

Procedure: Determine if any fines/civil penalties were imposed and verify the amount
of Fines/Civil Penalties for the Quarter. Prepare a listing of fines/penalties and issue
check payment to the State Treasurer. Retain a copy for administrative files.

king Board Log for Rate and Assessment Determination
Budeeted Projected Pied

B/A YVSTATE Request for Received FTh FTE FTh FTE FY16 fimdng FY17 Funding FY18 Funding FY19 Funding
BOARD OF: Information FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19

BOOl Accountancy 4/11/2016 2 2 2 2 S 173.200 S 173,200 S 210,200 S 210.200
Architecture.

BOO’
Interior Desiun
& Residential
Desien 4/11/2016 7 7 S 425,741 S 434,256
Audiology &

8003 Speech
Patholoev 4/11/2016 0 0 S - S

B004
Barber’s Health

& Sattitation 4/11/2016 0 0 S - S -

B005
Chiropractic
Exatttitters 4/11/2016 2.5 2.5 S 157,500 S 165,375

8006 Cosmetology 4/11/2016 19 19 $ 1,284,350 S 1,340,255

B007
Dental
Examiners 4/11/2016 7 7 S 545,000 S 610,000

BOOS
Engineers &
Land Surveyors 4/11/2016 7 7 $296,982 S305,891

B009 Funeral Board 4/11/2016 1 1 S 43,200 S 43,200
Hearina Aid

81)10

P a tz e 12



Fee Revenue Information Report

The Governor’s Finance Office / Budget Division requires all agencies to update the
database to record and track state fee revenues each fiscal year. Note: specific citation
for requirement could not be found.

Report Title:
Reporting To:
Report Period:

Rd. Hem. 00.71 POgo LooHol FOIO1IILI, 0.00

r A K

I

01000,0 A

Nil b

4 0
802.71 ASEOIIH1 D.IR,IET,00

3 OCCUPATIONAL THERAPy RLON-LREC

4 OCCUPATIONAL THEPAGV-NON-ESEC

5 REGISTERED ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SPECIALISTS-NON-Il

6 REGISTERED ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SPECIALESTS-NON-EE

7 REGISTERED ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SPECIALESTS-NON-IX

8 REGISTERED ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 5PECIAIESTS-NON-EX

IA

20

PT

22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

Fee Revenue Information
Governor’s Finance Office I Budget Division
Annually

I M N 0
AVThOGTS VVEHR,ITE HeTeIecT AIVHV,1I NATO,

HegolaToey ELAC 640*550 S E RI ROE 51,021,2 T€HOP00100, P,OH,ILHOII

E€EAVTV,V NAC 640*1EV $ ERAS 1,10, V,,,T,H,TIO,I. R&OHbOILeA E,PPHL,L

HP8OISIE’y NAC 6-TOOTER $ STARS AOPLT,S’OT P.DCelIIHg 000
HegoEaEE tALC 625*070 5 5250 ALIERPI,R,OTI

0000EOTHHE NAC 625*070 $ 250 02 RCZAT[IOTI

6OHVIIITAIR NRC 6254.070 S 3.5CC HE HPIVTI.HTI

R.gol,IoI., NAC 625*070 5 VITRO Al? RH1VIIIOI,

I 01505

—‘
LT RE)

IZR

Procedure: The Board receives an email that indicates it is time to provide updated
fee revenue. Boards must request the specific spreadsheet to be sent to them via
email. Enter the amount of fees for each fee designated in the spreadsheet. The fee
revenue received will be for the requested prior fiscal year. Once the spreadsheet has
been completed, it is then sent to the Budget Analyst designated to update the Boards
information.

Note: Boards do not have access to the State Fee Database system and therefore
sends the information directly to the State

9 60I 0808281 2801
- S1’R I 10,10.10,000 LI .- SI

00,0,0 Oio H AETOGII

RO5C E. E;.o..po.. 00,1,,,,,

KSAe3eGC.CCl $.%

H

PIVL CLV Hi 5 Ce

200LCIE,OH Poe

Re50LI,IE;oo Pee

956.,. LiTCoe,,oenO

K
(05060.4 FH,I,OHO CT’ 60.7 OeT,00000H.I 50210 60d& EAT.,
IHHTT0ITOg 5061.’ SIyT..QCEeM TIHIT StI,,01

N 11541 I 8.00

Rep De,R/C.V

N,Td

62
‘3

14

15

16

16
IS

S00tIFI,N foe 0000pofioo TIoee.p ()

P Eypp UeIe ER 504,06 0 C rt C I I

P a g e 13



Consultants Reporting - NRS 333.705(7)*

Requires each regulatory board to submit to the Interim Finance Committee, at least
once every 6 months, a report concerning each consultant employed by the entity.

Report Title: Consultant Report
Reporting To: Interim Finance Committee

Deputy Fiscal Analyst / Fiscal Division
Report Period: January 1st

— June I July 1st
— December 31st

Procedure: The reporting form is provided by LCB by email. Compile the
consultant information and complete the Consultants Reporting form, save for your
records and return to LCB charveylcb.state.nv.us

*Independent contractors: NRS 333.705 Contracts for services: Limitations and requirements; approval by State
Board of Examiners; emergencies; reports to Interim Finance Committee; exceptions.

NRS 333.705(7) Consultant Reporting by Board or Commission to IFC

Board or Commission: Board of Environmental Health Specialists

Reporting Period: January 1, 2019 through June 30, 2019

Number of Consultants Contracted by the Board or Commission: 1

EXAMPLE REPORT

Length of Time the Amount Paid to
Purpose for Contracting with

Consultant Name Consultant Has Consultant from Board
the Consultant

Been Employed or Commission

Independent Contract; Board —

Administration, Executive
1 Lorylynn Ltd. Director Services 5 years — $ 12,000

TOTAL $ 12,000

State Inventory Report - NRS 333.220 (SAM Manual)

Requires all “using agencies” to conduct an annual physical inventory of their personal
property and report the disposition of property to the Department of Administration,
Purchasing Division. Agencies are required to report inventory over $5,000. Boards
should maintain a separate list for items under the $5,000 cap as well.

Report Title: State Inventory Listing
Reporting To: Nevada State Purchasing Division
Report Period: Annually

Procedure: Provide updated list of inventory items that are over the required $5,000
cap for reporting to the State.

P a z e 14



CETS Summary Report - Contract Approvals — NRS 333.030 (SAM manual)

State Administrative Manual provides that all contracts for outside services over a
certain amount must be approved by the State Board of Examiners. The contracts also
require Attorney General review and signature prior to submission.

• Contracts less than $2,000 require approval of the Board/agency only and are
not submitted to the State for approval;

• Contracts $2,000 - $50,000 require State approval and may be approved by the
Clerk of the Board of Examiners (Short Form Contract Form)

• Contracts $50,000 and more must be approved by the Board of Examiners (Long
Form Contract for Services of Independent Contractor).

Report Title: CETS Summary Reports
Reporting To: Board of Examiners / Budget Division
Report Period: Submission by BOE Deadline Date based on Meeting Schedule.

Procedure: All contracts must be entered into the State CETS system by a Certified
Contract Manager. The contracts are entered into the system and a Contract Summary
page is generated by the system for inclusion with the 3 original signed contracts. The
contracts are then submitted to the Budget Division for processing/approval.

Special Requirements:
Only a “Certified Contract Manager” may access the CETS contracting system. Access
requires a State issued VPN if outside the State IT system.

State Controller Business License Information - NRS 353C.1965 (SB2I Reporting)

The Controller’s Office is no longer pursuing the implementation of 5B21 which
amended NRS 353c.1965 which is still required in NRS.

Requires a licensing agency to provide to the State Controller the following information:
• The name, address and social security number or employer identification number,

as applicable, of each licensee; and
• The business identification number of the licensee, if the licensee has a state

business license.

Report Title: Business License Reporting
Reporting To: State Controller’s Office
Report Period: Annually — Based on Renewal Period

Procedure: Licensing boards were required to modify their application and renewal
forms to request Nevada Business License information. Several meetings were held to
establish how the information would be submitted to the Controller’s Office with no
resolution.

Note: Capturing Nevada State Business License information during the licensing
process is useful as a resource listing when developing small business impact
statements related to regulation development.

P a p e 15



Secretary of State — SilverFiume

SilverFlume is the website for customers to find out all of the business licensing,
permitting and registration steps that are required across all agencies in Nevada.
Boards are required to set-up and maintain the various industry codes associated with
licensure for your agency. Included is information of what is required for each of the
types of licensure. Periodic maintenance is required by the Board.

BOARD FINANCIAL REPORTS

Board Expenditure Review and Financial Statements - NRS 622.234

It is the Boards’ fiduciary responsibility to oversee the financial status and detailed
expenditures of funds necessary to conduct the business of the Board and to ensure
funds are utilized strictly in accordance with policies, procedures and within the authority
of the Board.

Report Title: Board Financial Statement / Expenditure Review
Reporting To: Board Members
Report Period: Quarterly / Board Meetings

Procedure: Establish written internal controls regarding any withdrawals from the
Board’s account. The policy/procedure at a minimum must require two or more
members of the Board to review expenditures on a regular basis, preferably on a
monthly basis. It is recommended the Board Chair and another member be designated
as financial reviewers.

A listing of all expenditures for the period shall be provided to a designated financial
reviewer. Upon completion of the review, the reviewer shall attest to the completion of
the review by signature, date and return of the listing to be retained in the administrative
files.

At a minimum, quarterly financial statements shall be provided to the Board at a
regularly scheduled Board meeting. The Board’s financial statements shall be
comprised of Profit and Loss Statement, Balance Sheet and detailed schedule of
disbursements.

Financial Budget Report

It is recommended a Budget vs. Actual report for the fiscal year be included in the
quarterly Financial Statement Report to the Board.

Reserve Funds Report

At least annually, a Board should review it’s operating reserve funds in accordance with
the Board’s established reserve funds policy.

It is recommended the reserve funds report be included as a resource in the fiscal year
budgeting processes.

P a g e 16



BOARD ADMINISTRATIVE, PAYROLL AND BENEFITS REPORTS

Federal Payroll Reporting

Quarterly and annual payroll reports are required to be filed with the Internal Revenue
Service. (Form 941 and 940) and deposit of withheld and employer taxes is required.
Year end W-2 and W-3 reports are submitted to the Social Security Administration.

Report Title: Form 941 Quarterly Payroll Report
Form 940 Federal Annual Unemployment Tax Return
Form(s) W-2/W-3 Wage Report
Form(s) 1099/1096 Non-employee Compensation

Reporting to: Internal Revenue Service / Social Security Administration
Report Period: Quarterly in April, July, October, January

Annual FUTA by March 30th

W-2’s/1099’s by January 31st to staff; W-3/1 096 by March 30th

Procedure: Reports may be prepared and submitted electronically by a payroll
service or may be completed and submitted in hard copy by the due dates.

Quarterly, Annual and 1099/1 096 reports are filed with the IRS; payroll taxes are
submitted by EFTP as required by filing status. W-2/W-3 reports are submitted to the
Social Security Administration.

Nevada Deferred Compensation Program - Payroll Contributions - (Voya)

Boards may elect, but are not required, to participate in the Nevada Deferred
Compensation Program. Both employee and employer contribution options are
available.

Payroll Administration requires contributions to the Nevada Deferred Compensation
Program through the plan Administrator, VOYA.

Report Title: VOYA Deferred Compensation Reporting
Reporting To: VOYA, Deferred Compensation Program
Report Period: Bi-Weekly or Payroll Period

Procedure: Verify the deferred compensation contributions as reported on bi-weekly
payroll reports. Sign in to VOYA, payroll administration, enter by employee
contributions for the pay period, submit for payment.

Nevada Deferred Compensation Contributions Audit

The Office of Deferred Compensation periodically audits contributions to the Nevada
Deferred Compensation Program.

Report Title: Deferred Compensation Reporting
Reporting To: Administrative Office, Deferred Compensation Program
Report Period: Upon Request

P a g e 17



Procedure: Verify the contributions submitted for the indicated period as notified by
email from the Deferred Compensation administrative office and respond by email.

Unemployment Insurance - Quarterly Reporting

Boards may choose to pay unemployment insurance on the contributory basis or
optional reimbursement basis. The reimbursement basis does not require quarterly
contributions, any unemployment claims paid will be billed to the Board on an actual
claims paid basis.

An electric filing, on-line quarterly report of wages paid by employee is filed with the
State Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation, Employment Security
Unemployment Division.

Report Title: Unemployment Insurance Reporting
Reporting to: State Unemployment Insurance Division
Report Period: Quarterly - April; July; October and January for previous quarter

Procedure: Log into the Employer Reporting site and enter the quarterly payroll by
employee. Select -0- taxable wages when prompted if on reimbursement basis, and
submit or enter taxable wages and submit. If applicable, select payment and enter
payment information.

9 Lj,V.O,dUflefl’pl H

File EdH View Faeoe,les Tool, Help

C Go gle -
‘ STTTT• SCere MOOT 00

S - Tatobaco • logrformooom 3 b Suonted Tiles 9 000upa000al icceosir.g

— 0 X

P a g C 18



Worker’s Compensation Insurance Payroll Audit (ProGroup)

Boards are required to have worker’s compensation insurance coverage which may be
procured from any authorized insurance carrier. Several Boards use ProGroup as their
WC insurance carrier. For informational purposes, ProGroup process is as follows
which is similar to all insurance carrier processes.

Worker’s Compensation Insurance is procured through ProGroup as a member of the
Nevada Retail Association. Worker’s Compensation Assessment is invoiced annually.
An annual audit of payroll is required to be submitted upon request.

Report Title: Worker’s Compensation Payroll Audit
Reporting To: ProGroup
Report Period: Annually, Upon Request in January or February.

Procedure: Obtain annual payroll information and documents from bookkeeper by
individual and in total; access the electronic on-line reporting site, complete the audit
form and upload required documents.

Secretary of State — Nevada State Business License

Annual filing with Secretary of State’s office is required to claim exemption from the
Nevada State Business License requirements.

:0-; — 0 X

50 TAT V. 54q, HAp

Ho,oe Toot, SOS 2020-STATE.. - 0 1 •
S/, bOG .,

CERTIFICATION OF EXEMPTION
NEVADA STATE BUSINESS LICENSE

You have tiled a notice citing a statutory exemption pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes
and therefore are not required to maintain a Nevada State Business License.

If your exemption changes or your business is no longer exempt. you must file an
amendment reflecting your current business status. rj

Nevada Business Identification Number: NV2O 111608904

Entity Name: STATE OF NEVADA BOARL) OF OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY -

Associated Business Name: State of Nevada Board of Occupational Therapy

Entity Type: N17 Business License Other C
Exemption Code: 001 - A govemmental entity 4

Issued this 07/24/2020

P Typo hProoSeArd 0 i I C -. ‘2 ‘1 iu — 04
0/0/2020

P a g e 19



Public Employees Retirement System Reporting (PERS)

Boards may elect, but are not required, to participate in the Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS). Once a Board has joined PERS as a participating Board,
the election cannot be reversed or rescinded.

Participating Boards are required to submit information relating to the Board’s
employees that are enrolled in PERS for retirement contributions. In addition,
information must also be submitted that includes staff, investigators, and Board
Members that are not enrolled in the retirement system due to non-qualifying factors.

Report Title: PERS Monthly Statement
Reporting To: Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)
Report Period: Monthly

Procedure: A monthly report of wages and contributions must be submitted to PERS
per instructions received from PERS. Deposit of contributions must coincide with the
monthly reports.

Elected Officials Listing Report - NRS 286.421 (3)

States that persons chosen by election or appointed to service in elected offices shall
not have their salary adjusted under the Employer-Pay Contribution Plan. To ensure
that benefits are calculated accurately, the Public Employees Retirement System
requires a list of names and other pertinent information of the board appointed
members.

Report Title: Elected Officials Listing
Reporting To: Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)
Report Period: Annually

Procedure: Respond with spreadsheet of requested information and send via email to
the person in charge of collecting the information.

Public Employees Benefit Program (PEBP) Reporting

Board may elect, but are not required, to participate in the Public Employees Benefit
Program (PEBP). A participating Board is required to submit information relating to the
Board’s employees that receive health care benefits through the State. The reporting
includes a calculation for both the AEGIS & REGI Assessments.

Report Title: AEGIS Remittance I REGIS Remittance
Reporting To: Public Employees Benefit Program (PEBP)
Report Period: Monthly

Procedure: In order to calculate the monthly amount to be sent to PEBP the Board
must complete the monthly calculation spreadsheet for both the AEGIS & REGI
assessments. The calculation forms are submitted by mail with the check for payment.

P a g e I 20



3G
Amendment of Rural Regional

Behavioral Health Policy Board Bill



3H
Executive Director’s Report



Health Workforce Data Collection in Nevada through

the Licensure Renewal Process

Antonina Capurro, DMD, MPH, MBA

Nevada State Dental Health Officer

Nevada Department of Health and Human

Services (DHHS)

Vance K. Farrow, MPH

Healthcare Industry Specialist, Nevada

Governor’s Office of Economic Development

Sara Hunt, PhD

Assistant Dean of Behavioral Health Sciences

University of Nevada, Las Vegas School of

Medicine

Madison Huntley

Management Analyst, Director’s Office,

Nevada DHHS

Steve Messinger, MS

Policy Director, Nevada Primary Care

Association

Heather Mitchell

Health Resource Analyst, Primary Care

Office, Division of Public and Behavioral

Health, Nevada DHHS

John Packham, PhD

Associate Dean, Office of Statewide Initiatives,

University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine

Cody Phinney, MPH

Deputy Administrator, Division of Health

Care Finance and Policy (Nevada Medicaid),

Nevada DHHS

David Schmidt

Chief Economist, Research and Analysis

Bureau, Nevada Department of

Employment, Training, and Rehabilitation

November 13, 2020



This policy brief and the work of its co-authors originated in Nevada’s

participation in the National Governor Association’s “Improving

Capacity for Health Care Service Delivery” project in 2019 and 2020.

For additional information on this policy brief or its contents, please

contact Dr. John Packham at jpackham@med.unr.edu.



Improving Health Workforce Data Collection in Nevada through the

Licensure Renewal Process

Opportunity to Improve Nevada’s Health Care Workforce and Leverage Federal Funding

through Improved Data Collection

The Issue

The health care sector is vital to Nevada’s economy. The state’s health care workforce is crucial

to assuring that high-quality health care is accessible by all Nevadans. Rapid population growth

and insurance coverage expansions are increasing demands on clinics, hospitals, and other

health care providers. Accurate data on the state’s health care workforce is needed to ensure

an effective, efficient, and equitable health care system in Nevada. However, Nevada lacks a

consistent and easily accessible source of information about its health care and public health

workforce, including detailed data on current and projected health workforce supply and

demand. These issues have added urgency as Nevada health care providers and policymakers

respond to the current COVID-19 crisis and the pandemic’s impact on health system capacity

across the state.

A Solution

To efficiently identify workforce shortages and inform resource allocation and programmatic

solutions, the federal Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) within the

Department of Health and Human Services recommends that states routinely collect

supplemental information, such as provider specialty, practice geography, and patient care

hours, in conjunction with licensure renewal processes. License renewal processes offer a

strategic opportunity to efficiently gather information on an entire occupation. Such

information can be used to more accurately capture existing and calculate projected clinical

full-time equivalent capacity needed to meet the demand for health workers across geographic

regions of the state and across industries within the health sector. This approach to health

workforce data collection has gained support across multiple disciplines in nearly thirty states

across the country.

Applications

A number of states currently utilize the information generated through licensure renewal to

improve the accuracy of information required in health professions shortage area (HPSA)

designation applications, which are submitted by state primary care offices to HRSA. HPSA

designation for primary care, oral health, and mental health influences federal and state

policies intended to address statewide health workforce shortages and the geographic

1



maldistribution of providers across urban and rural regions of Nevada. HPSA designation

provides federal financial resources to recruit and retain health care providers in primary care,

dental health, and mental health by influencing eligibility for:

• National Health Service Corp

• Nursing Corp

• Community Health Center Program

• CMS Rural Health Clinic Program

• CMS HPSA Bonus Payment Program

• i-i Visa Waiver Program

• IHS Loan Repayment Program

Thus, improving the accuracy and efficiency of the HPSA designation process will allow Nevada

to take advantage of federal programs for health professionals and facilities serving Nevadans

residing in HPSA-designated regions of the state. Requiring health care professionals to provide

supplemental information in conjunction with licensure renewal will improve Nevada’s ability

to enumerate the current supply of health care workers and to understand specific

demographic, educational, and practice characteristics of that workforce.

In addition to improving the HPSA designation process in Nevada, the resulting data collection

and analysis will inform a wide-range of public and private-sector policy planning and

development in Nevada and improve state policymakers’ ability to address and evaluate:

• Statewide clinical and public health workforce capacity to respond to the current COVID

19 pandemic, as well as future emergency outbreak management, pandemic

preparedness, and health system capacity assessment in Nevada;

• Current and future workforce demand and supply in Nevada, including the scope and
severity of shortages in key areas such as primary care, oral health, and mental health;

• The adequacy of provider networks for public and private insurance plans serving
Medicaid beneficiaries and other residents of Nevada;

• Nevada’s capacity to address unmet and emerging health needs and associated health

workforce requirements, such as the number and types of behavioral health

professionals needed to address longstanding mental health needs of the state;

• Recruitment, retention, and workforce development activities by hospitals, medical

practices, local public health authorities, and other health care employers;

• Current health care education capacity in Nevada’s public and private institutions of

higher education, the need or demand for new programs, and the need to expand

existing programs;

• General fund supported graduate medical education (GME) funding and related policies,

including GME funding overseen by the Governor’s GME Task Force;

2



• Educational program effectiveness in graduating health professionals to ultimately

practice in Nevada, including public and private higher education medical, nursing,

dental, and behavioral health programs;

• Profession-specific retirement and attrition rates;

• The effectiveness of workforce incentive programs, such as National Health Service

Corps, Nevada Health Service Corps, and the i-i Visa Waiver Program; and

• Health workforce development within broader regional and statewide economic

development activities in Nevada.

Finally, improved data concerning the health care workforce in Nevada will significantly

improve upon the quality and timeliness of the data that is currently available. Currently,

occupational employment needs in Nevada that are prepared by the Department of

Employment, Training, and Rehabilitation are based on the Occupational Employment Statistics

(OES) program, which surveys businesses nationwide every six months. Due to data limitations,

this data is aggregated over three years, providing only a general perspective on the state’s

workforce. More comprehensive data about the health care workforce would improve the

quality of occupational projections, improve the state’s understanding of the relative supply of

and demand for various certifications and professions, and improve the state’s ability to

provide targeted, effective investments in workforce development in those areas with the

greatest need.

Bottom-line

With improved information, in additional to HPSA designations, policy makers, academic

institutions, and employers can make better informed decisions to ensure an adequate

workforce in the state. Other states have been able to modify policies and programs

surrounding Medicaid reimbursement, coverage of telehealth, career pipeline opportunities,

and assessing professional licensing and retention of behavioral health providers, among other

policies. Appendix 1 provides a summary of the recommendation for a bill draft request (BDR)

54-457, as approved by the Legislative Committee on Health Care at its meeting on September

14, 2020.

Health Professions Licensure Boards and Workforce Data Collection in Nevada Today

Currently, 26 state agencies and licensing boards in the State of Nevada are responsible for the

licensure, certification, and/or regulation of at least 70 health professions (see Appendix 2). As

a part of their ongoing effort to protect the public, these State of Nevada licensing boards

regularly collect and disseminate basic information about their licensees (e.g., age, active

versus inactive licensure state). This information is collected primarily through an individual’s

3



application to be admitted to the profession and through licensure renewal. Since applicants

for licensure complete applications and renewals under penalty of perjury, the data submitted

is generally of high quality and credibility.

Nevada has an opportunity for licensees to complete a voluntary set of supplemental questions

during the licensure renewal process that would provide policy makers with data on current

employment practices and future career plans that simply does not exist. A growing trend

among states is to include a standardized set of workforce questions in the licensure renewal

process that addresses requirements for HPSA applications and other health workforce

planning needs. The state licensing renewal process provides a unique and efficient opportunity

for collecting and updating workforce information for licensed professionals in a given discipline

— particularly data on the socio-demographic, educational and training, and practice

characteristics of the health workforce. There is a significant need to develop a standardized,

core set of data for health professions licensed and regulated by the State of Nevada.

Proposal for the Future of Health Workforce Data Collection

There is an opportunity in Nevada to improve standardized health workforce data collection

through legislation that tasks:

(1) health licensing boards to collect demographic and current practice data from licensees

at the time of renewal;

(2) a broad stakeholder committee with prioritizing data collection, identifying a discipline-

specific data elements for each health profession, and making recommendations for

future research and data collection (see Appendix 3 for a list of prospective health

workforce data collection stakeholders in Nevada); and

(3) the Nevada Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) with the management of

health workforce data collected by licensing boards and the provision of health

workforce data and reports to the public, health care stakeholders, state agencies, the

legislature, and the governor.

The proposed legislation should also consider allowing licensing boards to increase licensure

fees commensurate with the administrative and technical demands of creating and maintaining

discipline-specific questionnaires and data sets by the boards, and the associated data

management, analysis, and dissemination overseen by DHHS.

If enacted, the health workforce questions incorporated into existing licensure application and

renewal forms should be straightforward for licensees, place a minimal amount of burden on

4



the applicant (e.g., take less than 15 minutes to complete every two years), and place a minimal

amount of administrative and financial burden on licensing boards. Appendix 4 provides an

example of questions developed by the Federation of State Medical Boards in 2013 for

potential use as supplemental questions for physician licensure renewal. Appendix 5 provides a

list of the 28 states that currently collect health workforce data through the licensure and

licensure renewal process. Appendix 6 provides a list of the eight states that currently mandate

health workforce information collection through the licensure renewal process.

Health Workforce Data Elements Collected through Licensure Renewal

Table 1 summarizes potential health workforce data that could be collected through licensure

renewal: (1) social and demographic characteristics; (2) education, and training; and (3) current

practice and employment. Some of these data elements are already provided to licensing

boards through the initial application to most licensing boards (e.g., age, sex or gender, state

and federal provider numbers and would not need to be collected again). Many important data

elements are not, and would require adding questions to licensure renewal applications.

Table 1: Examples of Health Workforce Information Collected by Other US States via

Supplemental Questions Added to the Licensure Renewal Process

Social arid Demographic Characteristics

• Place of birth (zip code)

• Location of high school (zip code)

• Race and ethnicity

• Place of current residence (zip code)

• Military and veteran status

• Language skills, primary language(s) spoken

Education and Training

• Licensure status, active or inactive

• Number and type of job-related licenses held

• Number and type of job-related certificates held

• Degree(s) obtained, matriculation data, year(s) of completion

• Specialty training, subspecialty training

• Completion of other educational programs (e.g., internships)

• Current enrollment in a health-related degree program

5



• Current level of educational debt

• Participation in state and federal loan forgiveness programs

Current Practice and Employment

• Place(s) of employment (zip code)

• Primary occupation or position

• Secondary occupation or position (if applicable)

• Specialty area, Secondary specialties

• Employment status, full-time or part-time

• Number of hours worked per week

• Number of weeks worked per year

• Percent of time spent in patient care

• Percent of time spent in other activities, e.g., administration, teaching, research

• Employment arrangements, e.g., salaried versus self-employed

• Type of practice, e.g., private, government, not-for-profit

• Type of practice setting, e.g., hospital, clinic, academic

• Intention to remain in the state to practice or leave to practice in another state

• Intention to retire, or change or leave clinical practice

• Use of telehealth

• Use of translational services

• Use of health information technology (HIT) and health information exchange (HIE)

• Professional liability insurance costs, other barriers to practice

• Provision of services to Medicare and/or Medicaid patients

• Percent of patients by insurance type (public, private, self-pay, uninsured)

• Number of insurance companies panels or companies credentialed with

• Ability to accept new patients

Table 1 highlights potential data elements that could be incorporated in a discipline-specific,

policy-relevant health workforce data. The data elements listed in Table 1 are not intended to

be used in their entirety for any one discipline, since some elements will be relevant to

categories of workers and not to others. For example, some occupations specialize and

subspecialize (e.g., physicians, nurses, dentists), while most do not. The proposed legislation

would require licensing boards working in collaboration with health care stakeholders to

identify and tailor a discipline-specific set of data elements and questions to the current

licensure application and licensure renewal process.

6



To these ends, partnering with state licensing boards, health policymakers and stakeholders

across Nevada, the Nevada Department of Health and Human Services will assume all data

related duties associated with the proposed legislation including the creation of a Nevada

Health Workforce Data System that utilizes health workforce data generated through licensure

renewal.

7



Appendix 1: Health Care Workforce Data Collection, Analysis,

and Policy Act (BDR 54-457)

This summary presents the recommendation for a bill draft request (BDR) 54-457, as approved
by the Legislative Committee on Health Care at its meeting on September 14, 2020.

Health Workforce Data Collection

1. Propose legislation to enact the Health Care Workforce Data Collection, Analysis, and Policy
Act to improve available data on the health care workforce in Nevada. This data will be used
to inform health policy planning and workforce development, including health professional
shortage area (HPSA) designations and funding tied to HPSA designations for health
professionals and facilities in medically underserved areas of the state. Specifically:

a. The director of DHHS shall establish and maintain a database, analyze data collected,
develop reports for the Legislature or the Executive Branch, and perform other duties to
carry out the provisions of the Health Care Workforce Data Collection, Analysis, and Policy
Act. The Department may contract or collaborate with a private or public entity to
conduct the aforementioned activities.

i. An entity that establishes, maintains, or analyzes data or develops reports by
contract pursuant to subsection (a) of this section shall provide to DHHS, in a
manner that conforms to DHHS rules, access to any health care workforce data
that the entity establishes, maintains, analyzes, or reports; and

ii. Aggregated, de-identified data must be made available to the public.

b. An applicant for renewal of a license by a board shall provide the information prescribed
by DHHS pursuant to subsection (d) of this section. Subsection (b) applies to applicants
for renewal of health professional licensure under the following boards:

i. Board of Medical Examiners;

ii. State Board of Osteopathic Medicine;

iii. Board of Dental Examiners of Nevada;

iv. Board of Psychological Examiners;

v. Board of Examiners for Social Workers;

vi. Board of Examiners for Marriage and Family Therapists and Clinical Professional
Counselors;

8



vii. State Board of Nursing; and

viii. State Board of Pharmacy.

c. Failure of an applicant for renewal of a license to submit the information pursuant to
subsection (d) of this section is not grounds for denial of the renewal or any other
disciplinary action by the board against the applicant.

d. The State Board of Health, with input from licensing boards and other health care
stakeholders, shall adopt rules regarding the manner, form, and content of reporting
data; the consistency of data entry fields used; and the information that an applicant,
pursuant to subsection (b) of this section, shall provide to a board. At a minimum, the
rules shall provide for a core essential data set, including the applicant’s:

i. Demographics, including, but not limited to, race, ethnicity, and primary and other
languages spoken;

ii. Practice status, including, but not limited to:

• Active practices in Nevada and other locations;

• Practice type, such as individual practice or multispecialty group
practices; and

• Practice settings, such as hospital, clinic, or other clinical settings;

iii. Education, training, and primary and secondary specialties;

iv. Average hours worked per week and the average number of weeks worked per
year in the licensed profession;

v. Percentage of practice engaged in direct patient care and in other activities, such
as teaching, research, and administration in the licensed profession;

vi. Practice plans for the next five years, including retiring from the health care
profession, moving out of state, or changing health care work hours; and

vii. Additional data elements identified by the State Board of Health.

If boards already collect information required by the State Board of Health, they do not
need to duplicate the same questions for the purposes of the required data collection,
but all required information must be provided to DHHS.

e. The following boards shall report health care workforce information collected pursuant
to this section to DHHS on a regular basis, to be determined by the State Board of Health

9



in regulation, but no less than annually. Required data must be collected for all license
renewals beginning July 1, 2022, and may be collected earlier if regulations are in place:

i. Board of Medical Examiners;

ii. State Board of Osteopathic Medicine;

iii. Board of Dental Examiners of Nevada;

iv. Board of Psychological Examiners;

v. Board of Examiners for Social Workers;

vi. Board of Examiners for Marriage and Family Therapists and Clinical Professional
Counselors;

vii. State Board of Nursing; and

viii. State Board of Pharmacy.

f. Other health professional licensure boards may choose to require applicants for license
renewal to submit data as prescribed by the State Board of Health, and the board may
provide such data to DHHS pursuant to the Health Care Workforce Data Collection,
Analysis, and Policy Act.

g. A board shall keep confidential and not release personally identifiable data collected
under this section for any person licensed, registered, or certified by the board. The
provisions of this subsection do not apply to the release of information to a law
enforcement agency for investigative purposes or to DHHS for state health planning
purposes. The Department or a person with whom DHHS contracts to perform data
collection, storage, and analysis shall protect the privacy of that data. The Department
shall ensure that the responses of applicants shall be kept confidential, including taking
special precautions when the identity of an applicant may be ascertained due to the
applicants location or occupation.

i. Only aggregate, de-identifiable data may be made public; and

ii. None of the data required to be collected by the State Board of Health that is not
typically collected as part of the license renewal process may be used by boards
to make decisions regarding licensure renewal.

h. A board shall promulgate rules as necessary to perform the board’s duties pursuant to
this section, including rules for collecting, storing, and analyzing data in addition to the
information required to be collected by the Health Care Workforce Data Collection,
Analysis, and Policy Act.

10



Health Care Workforce Advisory Group—The director of DHHS shall convene a health care
workforce advisory group that includes representatives of health care consumers; health
care providers and industry; organized groups representing physicians, physician
assistants, nurses, nurse practitioners, dentists, dental hygienists, pharmacists,
behavioral health providers, and allied health professions; health care workforce training
institutions; institutions of higher education; health professional licensing boards; and
appropriate representatives of DHHS. The workforce advisory group shall advise:

i. The State Board of Health on the development of regulations related to required
questions/data collection, survey methodology, and other related issues; and

ii. The State Board of Health and other health stakeholders on the use of health
workforce data to inform policymaking, the federal HPSA designation process,
health policy planning, and improving health outcomes in Nevada.

The advisory group must convene within 90 days of the effective date of this bill.

j. Requested effective date is July 1, 2021.

11



Appendix 2: Health Professions Licensed and Regulated in Nevada

Currently, 26 state agencies and licensing boards in the State of Nevada are responsible for the

licensure, certification, and/or regulation of at least 70 health occupations in Nevada:

Board of Applied Behavior Analysis (NRS 437)

• Assistant Behavior Analysts

• Behavior Analysts

Board of Examiners for Long Term Care Administrators (NRS 654)

• Long-Term Care Administrators

• Nursing Facility Administrators

• Residential Facility Administrators

• Health Services Executive

Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada (NRS 634)

• Chiropractor’s Assistants

• Doctors of Chiropractic

Nevada Board of Examiners for Alcohol, Drug & Gambling Counselors (NRS 641C)

• Alcohol and Drug Counselors

• Gambling Counselors

Nevada Board of Registered Environmental Health Specialists (NRS 625A)

• Environmental Health Specialists

Nevada State Board of Athletic Trainers (NRS 640B)

• Athletic Trainers

12



Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners (NRS 631)

• Dental Hygienists

• Dentists

Nevada State Board of Examiners for Marriage and Family Therapists and Clinical Professional

Counselors (NRS 641A)

• Clinical Professional Counselors

• Marriage and Family Therapists (MET)

Nevada State Board of Health

• Dietitians (NRS 640E)

• Music Therapists (NRS 640D)

Nevada State Board of Homeopathic Medical Examiners (NRS 630A)

• Advanced Practitioners of Homeopathy

• Homeopathic Assistants

• Homeopathic Physicians

Nevada State Board of Massage Therapy (NRS 640C)

• Massage Therapists

Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners (NRS 630)

• Allopathic Physicians (MD)

• Medical Assistants (MA)

• Perfusionists

• Physician Assistants (PA)

• Psychiatrists

• Respiratory Therapists (RT)

13



Nevada State Board of Nursing (NRS 632)

• Advanced Practitioners of Nursing (APN or APRN)

• Emergency Medical Services Registered Nurse (EMS-RN)

• Licensed Practical Nurses (LPN)

• Nursing Assistants (CNA)

• Registered Nurses (RN)

• Registered Nurse Anesthetists (CRNA)

Nevada State Board of Optometry (NRS 636)

• Optometrists

Nevada State Board of Oriental Medicine (NRS 634A)

• Doctor of Oriental Medicine (OMD)

Nevada State Board of Osteopathic Medicine (NRS 633)

• Osteopathic Physicians (DO)

• Osteopathic Physician Assistants (PA)

Nevada State Board of Pharmacy (NRS 639)

• Pharmacists

• Pharmaceutical Technicians

Nevada State Board of Podiatry (NRS 635)

• Podiatric Hygienists

• Podiatrists

Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners (NRS 641)

• Psychologists

14



Nevada State Board of Veterinary Medical Examiners (NRS 638)

• Animal Chiropractors

• Animal Physical Therapists

• Euthanasia Technicians

• Veterinarians

• Veterinary Technicians

Nevada State Health Division, Bureau of Health Care Quality and Compliance (NRS 652)

• Medical Laboratory Assistants

• Medical Laboratory Directors

• Medical Laboratory Technologists

• Medical Laboratory Technicians

Nevada State Health Division, Emergency Medical Systems (NRS 450B)

• Advanced Emergency Medical Technicians (AEMT)

• Emergency Medical Responders (EMR)

• Emergency Medical Technicians (EMT)

• Emergency Medical Technician-Intermediates (EMT-185)

• Paramedics

State of Nevada Board of Dispensing Opticians (NRS 637)

• Dispensing Opticians

• Optician Apprentices

15



State of Nevada Board of Examiners for Social Workers (NRS 641B)

• Associates in Social Work

• Independent Social Workers

• Licensed Clinical Social Workers (LCSW)

• Social Workers (LSW)

State of Nevada Board of Occupational Therapy (NRS 640A)

• Occupational Therapists (OT)

• Occupational Therapy Assistants (OTA)

State of Nevada Physical Therapy Board (NRS 640)

• Physical Therapists (PT)

• Physical Therapy Assistants (PTA)

State of Nevada Speech-Language Pathology, Audiology & Hearing Aid Dispensing Board (NRS

637B)

• Audiologists

• Hearing Aid Specialists

• Speech-Language Pathologists

16



Appendix 3: Health Workforce Data Collection Stakeholders in Nevada

Stakeholders and utilizers of the Nevada Health Workforce Data System and health workforce

information collected via licensure renewal include but are not limited to:

Health System Providers, Organizations, and Employers

• Nevada Hospital Association, member organizations

• Nevada Primary Care Association, member organizations

• Nevada Rural Hospital Partners, member organizations

• Nevada Health Care Association, member organizations

• Nevada Medical Group Management Association, northern and southern chapters

• Nevada State Medical Association, county medical societies, specialty societies

• Nevada Psychological Association

• Nevada Association of Social Workers

• Nevada Nurses Association

• Nevada Advanced Practice Nurses Association

• Nevada Dental Association, county dental societies

• Nevada Business Group on Health, other employer health plans and coalitions

• Health insurance carriers, managed care organizations, HMOs, ACOs

• Other professional and trade associations

State and Local Government Agencies

• State health professions licensing boards and regulatory agencies listed in Appendix 1

• Governor’s Office, COVID-19 Response Director

• Governor’s Office, Department of Administration, GME Task Force

• Governor’s Office of Economic Development (GOED)

17



• Governor’s Office of Workforce Innovation (OWINN)

• Nevada Primary Care Office

• State and county health departments and boards of health, including:

o Southern Nevada Health District

o Washoe County Health District

o Carson City Health and Human Services

• Nevada State Legislature

o Legislative Council Bureau

• Nevada Division of Health Care Financing and Policy (Nevada Medicaid)

• Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health

• Nevada Department of Health and Human Services

• Nevada Department of Employment, Training, and Rehab, GWIB, Health Sector Council

• Nevada Division of Insurance, DCI Network Adequacy Advisory Council

• Governor’s Patient Protection Commission (PPC)

• Silver State Health Insurance Exchange

Higher Education Institutions and Programs

• Nevada System of Higher Education

o College of Southern Nevada (CSN)

o Great Basin College (GBC)

o Nevada State College (NSC)

o Truckee Meadows Community College (TMCC)

o University of Nevada, Las Vegas (UN LV)

o University of Nevada, Reno (UNR)

o Western Nevada College (WNC)

• Private higher education institutions, including but not limited to:

o Roseman Health Sciences University

18



o Touro University Nevada

• Nevada Western Interstate Commission for Higher Education (WICHE) Program

• Nevada State Office of Rural Health (UNR Med)

• Nevada Area Health Education Centers Program (AHEC) (UNR Med)

• UNLV Mental and Behavioral Health Coalition (UN LV)

Other Organizations and Agencies

• AARP, Access to Health Care Network, patient advocacy groups

• LasVegas HEALS

• Las Vegas Metro Chamber of Commerce, Reno-Sparks Chamber of Commerce, other

local chambers of commerce and business groups

• Las Vegas Global Economic Alliance, Economic Development Authority of Western

Nevada, other economic development authorities in Nevada

19



Appendix 4: Example — Supplemental Questions Developed by the

Federation of State Medical Boards for Allopathic (MD) and Osteopathic

(DO) Physicians during Licensure Renewal

Social and Demographic Characteristics

1. Birth date (MM/DD/YEAR):

_____

/

_____

/

_________

2. Sex: 0 Male 0 Female

3. Race

O White 0 Black or African American

O American Indian or Alaska Native 0 Asian

O Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander 0 Other (specify)

_____________

4. Ethnicity — Are you Hispanic, Latino/a, or of Spanish origin?

O No 0 Yes, Mexican, Mexican American, Chicano/a

O Yes, Puerto Rican 0 Yes, Cuban

O Yes, Another Hispanic, Latino/a, or of Spanish origin (specify)

_____________

5. Do you speak a language other than English at home? (optional)

DYes ONo

6. What is this language? (if you answered Yes to #5)

O Spanish

O Other Language (identify)

___________

Education and Training

7. Medical Education

What is your medical degree?

O M.D. 0 D.O. 0 M.B.B.S.

What year did you complete your medical degree?

______

20



Where did you complete your medical degree?

O United States (specify state):_________________

Medical School Name_____________________

o Foreign Country (specify):

8. Residency Training/Graduate Medical Education

First Specialty Training

• Location (State)

_________________________

• Number of Years of Training

____________

• Year Completed

_____________________

Subspecialty Training

• Location (State)

_________________________

• Number of Years of Training

____________

• Year Completed______________________

Additional Training

• Location (State)

________________________

• Number of Years of Training_____________

• Year Completed

____________________

9. Training and Certification

Completed Accredited

Residency Program / Fellowships Board Certified

Principal Specialty 0 Yes 0 No 0 Yes 0 No

Secondary Specialty 0 Yes 0 No 0 Yes 0 No

Current Practice and Employment

10. What is your employment status?

o Actively working in a position that requires a medical license

O Actively working in a field other than medicine

0 Not currently working

O Retired

11. Are you currently providing direct clinical or patient care on a regular basis?

o Yes

o No

21



12. If how many years has it been since you provided clinical or patient care?

O Less than 2 years

o 2 to 5 years

O5to l0years

O More than 10 years

13. Which of the following best describes the area(s) of practice in which you spend most
of your professional time:

Completed Accredited
Area of Practice Principal Secondary Residency Program or

_________

Fellowship

Adolescent Medicine 0 0 0

Anesthesiology 0 0 0

Allergy and Immunology 0 0 0

Cardiology 0 0 0

Child Psychiatry 0 0 0

Colon and Rectal Surgery 0 0 0

Critical Care Medicine 0 0 0

Dermatology 0 0 0

Endocrinology 0 0 0

Emergency Medicine 0 0 0

Family Medicine/General Practice 0 0 0

Gastroenterology 0 0 0

Geriatric Medicine 0 0 0

Gynecology Only 0 0 0

Hematology & Oncology 0 0 0

Infectious Diseases 0 0 0

Internal Medicine (General) 0 0 0

Nephrology 0 0 0

Neurological Surgery 0 0 0

Neurology 0 0 0

Obstetrics and Gynecology 0 0 0

Occupational Medicine 0 0 0

Ophthalmology 0 0 0

Orthopedic Surgery 0 0 0

Other Surgical Specialties 0 0 0

Otolaryngology 0 0 0

Pathology 0 0 0

Pediatrics (General) 0 0 0

Pediatrics Subspecialties 0 0 0

22



Physical Med. & Rehab. 0 0 0

Plastic Surgery 0 0 0

Preventive Medicine/Public Health 0 0 0

Psychiatry 0 0 0

Pulmonology 0 0 0

Radiation Oncology 0 0 0

Radiology 0 0 0

Rheumatology 0 0 0

Surgery (General) 0 0 0

ThoracicSurgery 0 0 0

Urology 0 0 0

Vascular Surgery 0 0 0

Other Specialties 0 0 0

14. Which of the following categories best describes your primary and secondary practice

or work setting(s) where you work the most hours each week?

Practice Setting Principal Secondary

Office/Clinic—Solo Practice 0 0

Office/Clinic—Partnership 0 0

Office/Clinic—Single Specialty Group 0 0

Office/Clinic—Multi Specialty Group 0 0

Hospital—Inpatient 0 0

Hospital—Outpatient 0 0

Hospital—Emergency Department 0 0

Hospital—Ambulatory Care Center 0 0

Federal Government Hospital 0 0

Research Laboratory 0 0

Medical School 0 0

Nursing Home or Extended Care Facility 0 0

Home Health Setting 0 0

Hospice Care 0 0

Federal/State/Community Health Center(s) 0 0

Local Health Department 0 0

23



Telemedicine 0 0

Volunteer in a Free Clinic 0 0

Other (specify): 0 0

15. How many weeks did you work in medical related positions in the past 12 months? —

16. For all medical related positions held in (insert state name), indicate the average
number of hours per week spent on each major activity:

Clinical or patient care

______

hours/week
Research

_____

hours/week

Teaching/Education hours/week

Administration hours/week

Volunteering (medical related only) hours/week

Other (specify):

______________________ ______

hours/week

17. What is the location of the site(s) where you spend most of your time providing direct
clinical or patient care? Please enter the complete address for up to three locations
and your direct patient care hours per week at each site.

Principal Location Address

Number Street

City/Town State Zip Code

Direct patient care hours per week at site:

Second Location Address (if applicable)

Number Street

City/Town State Zip Code

Direct patient care hours per week at site:

________

24



Appendix 5: States Collecting Health Workforce Information

through the Licensing Process

Currently, 28 states collect health workforce information through surveys and supplemental

questions that are part of the licensing and licensure renewal process for selected health care

occupations:

• California — Philip R. Lee Institute for Health Policy Studies, University of California, San

Francisco

• Colorado — Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment

• Florida — Florida Center for Nursing

• Hawaii — University of Hawaii Area Health Education Center

• Indiana — Bowen Center for Health Workforce Research and Policy, University of Indiana

• Kansas — Kansas Office of Primary Care and Rural Health, Kansas Department of Health

and Environment

• Louisiana — Louisiana Center for Nursing

• Massachusetts — Massachusetts Health Care Workforce Center

• Minnesota — Office of Rural Health and Primary Care, Minnesota Department of Health

• Mississippi — Office of Mississippi Physician Workforce

• Missouri — Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services

• Montana — Montana Primary Care Office, Montana Department of Public Health and

Human Services

• New Hampshire — Rural Health and Primary Care Section, New Hampshire Department

of Health and Human Services

25



• New Mexico — University of New Mexico Health Sciences Center

• New York — Center for Health Workforce Studies, University at Albany, State University

of New York

• North Carolina — Sheps Center, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

• North Dakota — North Dakota Center for Nursing

• Ohio — Ohio Colleges of Medicine Governmental Resource Center

• Oregon — Oregon Healthcare Workforce Institute

• Pennsylvania — Pennsylvania Department of Health

• South Carolina — South Carolina Office of Health Care Workforce

• South Dakota — South Dakota Office of Rural Health

• Texas — Health Professions Resource Center, Texas Department of State Health Services

• Vermont — Office of Primary Care and Area Health Education Center Program, University

of Vermont Lamer College of Medicine

• Virginia — Virginia Healthcare Workforce Data Center

• Wisconsin — Wisconsin Area Health Education Center Program

Source: Health Workforce Technical Assistance Center (October 2020).

26



Appendix 6: State Laws Mandating Supplemental Information Collection

to the Licensure Renewal Process

Currently, eight states mandate supplemental information to be collected through the licensure

renewal process for selected health professions:

State Professions/Boards Included in Mandate Link to Legislation

Arizona Medicine and Surgery https://www.azleg.gov
Nursing /viewdocument/?docN

Osteopathic Physicians and Surgeons ame=https%3A%2F%2F
Psychologists www.azleg.gov%2Fars

Board of Physical Therapy %2F32%2F03249-
Behavioral Health Professionals 01.htm

Indiana Medical Licensing Board http://iga.in.gov/Iegisla
State Board of Nursing tive/I aws/2019/ic/titles

State Board of Dentistry /0254*25-1-2-10
Behavioral Health and Human Services Licensing

Board
State Psychology Board

Indiana Board of_Pharmacy

Minnesota Board of Medical Practice https://www.revisor.m
Board of Nursing n.gov/statutes/cite/14

Board of Physical Therapy 4.051
Board of Psychology
Board of Social Work

Board of Marriage and Family Therapy
Board of Dentistry
Board_of_Pharmacy

New Hampshire Board of Medicine (Physicians and PAs) http://www.gencourt.s
Board of Dental Examiners (Dentists and RDH5) tate,nh.us/rsa/html/x/

Board of Pharmacy (Pharmacists) 126-a/126-a-5.htm
Board of Nursing (APRNs)

Board of Allied Health Professionals (PTs/SLPs/OTs)
Board of Psychologists (psychologists)

Board of Mental Health Practice (LCMHC5, LICSWs,
MFT5, PPs)

Board of Alcohol and Drug Use Professionals

( LADC\M LADCs)

27



New Mexico New Mexico Medical Board https://laws.nmonesou
The Board of Osteopathic Medical Examiners rce.com/w/nmos/Chap
The New Mexico Board of Dental Health Care ter-24-NMSA-

The Board of Nursing 1978#!b/al4C
The Board of Pharmacy

Any Other Licensing or Regulatory Board That the
Chancellor Designates Any Other Health Professional

Licensing_Board_Listed_in_Chapter_61_NMSA_1978
New York Nurse Practitioners http://www.op.nysed.g

Physicians ov/prof/nurse/articlel
39.htm

https://www. nysen ate.
gov/legislation/laws/PB
H/2995-A

Oregon State Board of Examiners for Speech-Language https://www.oregon.g
Pathology and Audiology ov/oha/HPA/Pages/Sta

State Board of Chiropractic Examiners tutes
State Board of Licensed Social Workers Details.aspx?View=%7b

Oregon Board of Licensed Professional Counselors BF005535-B542-446F-
and Therapists BOB7-

Oregon Board of Dentistry 61328A304AEA%7d&S
Board of Licensed Dietitians elected ID=11

State Board of Massage Therapists
Oregon Board of Naturopathic Medicine

Oregon State Board of Nursing Respiratory Therapist
and Polysomnographic Technologist Licensing Board

Oregon Board of Optometry State Board of Pharmacy
Oregon Medical Board

Occupational Therapy Licensing Board
Physical Therapist Licensing Board

State Board of Psychologist Examiners
Board_of_Medical_Imaging

28



Texas Audiologists https://statutes.capitol
Chiropractors .texas.gov/Docs/HS/ht

Licensed Professional Counselors m/HS.105.htm
Licensed Chemical Dependency Counselors

Dentists and Dental Hygienists
Emergency Medical Services Personnel

Marriage and Family Therapists
Medical Radiologic Technologists

Licensed Vocational Nurses,
Registered Nurses

Certified Nurse Aides
Occupational Therapists

Optometrists
Pharmacists

Physical Therapists
Physicians and Physician Assistants

Psychologists
Social Workers

Speech-Language Pathologists

29



SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS

LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE ON SENIOR CITIZENS,
VETERANS AND ADULTS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS

Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 21 8E.750

This summary presents the recommendations approved by the Legislative Committee on Senior
Citizens, Veterans and Adults With Special Needs at its meeting on September 1, 2020. The bill
draft requests (BDRs) will be forwarded to the Legislative Commission for transmittal to the
8lS Session of the Nevada Legislature.

During the drafting process, specific details of the following proposals for legislation and letters
may be further clarified by staff in consultation with the chair or others, as appropriate.

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR LEGISLATION

1. The Committee voted to request legislation to require a private employer of fewer than
50 employees that provides sick leave benefits to allow the employees to use such accrued
leave, in accordance with company policy, for absences due to illness, injury, medical
appointment, or other authorized medical need of a member of the employee’s immediate
family. This would be a redraft of Assembly Bills 394 and 90, which are failed measures from
the 2017 and 2019 Sessions, respectively. (BDR 53—379)

2, The Committee voted to request legislation to create a Vulnerable Adult Protection Order
under Chapter 33 of NRS to protect vulnerable adults against abuse, neglect, and exploitation.
(BDR 3—380)

3. The Committee voted to request legislation to appropriate State General Funds in the amount
of $250,000 in each fiscal year of the 202 1—2023 Biennium to support the Adopt a Vet Dental
Program. (BDR S—381)

4. The Committee voted to request legislation to:

a. Amend subsection 2 of NRS 396.540 to include that tuition charges must not be assessed
against a veteran, a spouse, or the dependent of a veteran of the U.S. Armed Forces who is
using benefits under the federal Post-9/1 1 Veterans’ Educational Assistance program who
became eligible for such benefits on or after January 1, 2013. The provisions of this
recommendation would become effective on July 1, 2021.

b. Amend subsection 2 of NRS 396.540 to include that tuition charges must not be assessed
against all students who are using benefits under the Survivors’ and Dependents’
Educational Assistance (DEA) program (38 U.S.C. 3500 through 3566).

c. Create an enrollment preference for applicants of a nursing and teaching program at a
university, state college, or community college within the Nevada System of Higher
Education (NSHE) who are veterans of the U.S. Armed Forces.



d. Require the Board of Regents of NSHE to develop a database to continue to track, monitor,
and analyze the participation of students who are veterans in NSHE as required by
Section 2 of AB 76 (2015). By limitation, the report required by AB 76, as codified in
NRS 396.507, expired on July 1, 2020. (BDR 34—382)

5. The Committee voted to request legislation to:

a. Require occupational and professional licensing boards, pursuant to Title 54 (“Professions,
Occupations and Businesses”) of NRS, to collect data regarding the number of military
spouses that apply for, are issued, or are denied a license, certificate, registration, permit,
or other similar authorization. The BDR would coincide with NRS 622. 120, which requires
regulatory bodies to collect information regarding the number of veterans and
servicemembers who have applied for, have been issued, or have renewed a license with
the regulatory bodies. However, in order to collect accurate data to determine the effect of
efforts to improve the interstate licensure process, a regulatory body would need separate
military spouse applicant information from those who are current servicemembers
or veterans.

b. Require occupational and professional licensing boards, pursuant to Title 54 of NRS, to
post on their website the options available to active members or veterans of the U.S. Armed
Forces, as well as their spouses or surviving spouses, for obtaining a license, certificate,
registration, permit, or other similar authorization issued by the board.

c. Require occupational and professional licensing boards, pursuant to Title 54 of NRS—that
are not already required to do so—to collect not more than one-half of the fee set forth for
the issuance of a license to a spouse of an active member of the U.S. Armed Forces.

d. Amend the applicable provisions in NRS concerning endorsement and reciprocity to
replace the term “may” with “shall” in sections concerning endorsement and reciprocity of
a license, certificate, registration, permit, or other similar authorization. Also, provide that
denial for good cause is defined as the applicant has been convicted of a crime or engaged
in other misconduct determined by the board to be related to the practice of the profession.

e. Amend chapters within Title 54 of NRS—if not already required to do so—to require
occupational and professional licensing boards to issue a license by endorsement or
reciprocity to active members or veterans of the U.S. Armed Forces, as well as their spouses
or surviving spouses, who hold a valid and unrestricted license to practice a profession in
the District of Columbia or any state or territory of the United States, by adding to those
chapters or Chapter 622 of NRS a provision similar to NRS 636.207. Also, ensure that the
new provisions are mandatory by using the term “shall” throughout.

f. Amend Title 54 of NRS, for the purpose of endorsement and reciprocity, so that the
requirement for fingerprint-based criminal background checks does not apply to active
members or veterans of the U.S. Armed Forces or their spouses or surviving spouses.

g. Require all occupational and professional licensing boards, under Title 54 of NRS, to issue
a provisional license immediately after submission of an application by active members or

2



veterans of the U.S. Armed Forces, as well as their spouses or surviving spouses, who hold
a valid and unrestricted license in another jurisdiction. (BDR —383)

6. The Committee voted to request legislation to draft a resolution calling on the federal
government to address the issue of military spouses’ loss of retirement benefits due to frequent
relocations by creating a retirement plan that is funded by the Department of Defense
Appropriations Act. (BDR —384)

7. The Committee voted to request legislation to require the Division of Health Care Financing
and Policy of the Department of Health and Human Services to provide Medicaid coverage of
Current Procedural Terminology code 99483, which involves care planning services to
individuals with cognitive impairment, including Alzheimer’s disease. (BDR 38—385)

8. The Committee voted to request legislation to amend Chapter 656A of NRS to update the
requirements and qualifications for sign language interpreters to align with the national
standards and recommended practices. (BDR 54—386)

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR COMMITTEE ACTION

9. The Committee voted to include a position statement in its final report calling on Congress to
provide additional funding for the United States Postal Service so that senior citizens, veterans,
and adults with special needs do not miss delivery of their prescription medications because of
Postal Service delays. Any delay with the postal system is a concern because patients may not
be able to access the medications they need.

10. The Committee voted to send a letter to the Board of Regents of NSHE expressing the
Committee’s desire for the creation of a committee made up of leaders of various federal, state,
and local government agencies and organizations that work to promote hiring veterans,
members of the U.S. Armed Forces, and their spouses to facilitate discussion and collaboration
to assist student veterans seeking employment, internships, or other related opportunities that
result in job placement.

11. The Committee voted to send a letter to the Board of Regents of NSHE expressing the
Committee’s desire to include “military veterans” as a special population category within any
current goals, policies, and practices on issues related to equity, diversity, and inclusion.

12. The Committee voted to send a letter to the chair of the Nevada Veterans Services Commission
(VSC), Department of Veterans Services, requesting that the VSC create a subcommittee
tasked to identify the needs of active duty military spouses in Nevada. The
subcommittee should study how Nevada can improve military spouse employment matters,
including barriers to occupational and professional licensure. Members of the subcommittee
should, at a minimum, include representatives of federal, state, and local government agencies
and organizations that work to promote employment matters of military spouses,
representatives of Nevada’s occupational and professional licensing boards, and military
spouses that represent a military installation in the State of Nevada and a military installation
in another state that has specific nexus to this state.

3



13. The Committee voted to send a letter to the governor of the State of Nevada, the chairs of the
Assembly Committee on Ways and Means and the Senate Committee on Finance of
the 81st Legislative Session, and the federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services
expressing the Committee’s support to fund a technology solution to streamline the application
and enrollment process for all three home- and community-based waiver services.
Streamlining the application and enrollment process is intended to reduce the burden on
individuals and their families as well as reduce wait times for essential services that keep
vulnerable Nevadans out of skilled nursing facilities.

14. The Committee voted to send a letter to Nevada’s federal delegation recommending and
expressing support for federal legislation that aligns revenue policies to end the payment of
subminimum wages to workers with disabilities.

4



C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

A
N

D
PU

B
L

IC
R

E
L

A
T

IO
N

S

B
E

S
W

to
im

p
ro

v
e

it
s

re
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
s

w
it

h
li

c
e
n
se

e
s,

ex
te

rn
al

p
ar

tn
er

s,
an

d
o

th
e
r

st
a
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

,
an

d
b
e

p
er

ce
iv

ed
a
s

re
sp

o
n

si
v
e,

e
a
sy

to
w

o
rk

w
it

h
,

co
ll

ab
o
ra

ti
v

e,
an

d
fa

ir
.

G
O

A
L

1:
B

E
S

W
w

ill
ac

h
ie

v
e

a
75

%
sa

ti
sf

ac
ti

o
n

ra
ti

ng
fr

om
li

ce
n

se
es

(b
y

20
23

)

R
e:

N
A

C
C

h
an

g
e

—
H

el
d

2
P

u
b
li

c
W

o
rk

sh
o
p
s,

I
P

u
b
li

c
H

ea
ri

ng
as

w
el

l
as

B
u
si

n
es

s
an

d
L

ic
en

se
e

S
u

rv
ey

s_
-

In
te

re
st

ed
?

P
le

as
e

C
al

l
K

ar
en

at
77

5-
68

8-
25

55

D
et

er
m

in
e

A
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
e

S
tr

at
eg

y
fo

r
20

21
L

eg
is

la
ti

v
e

S
es

si
o
n

D
ev

el
op

an
d

Im
p
le

m
en

t
D

at
a

G
at

h
er

in
g

S
y
st

em
in

20
21

B
oa

rd
of

E
x

am
in

er
s

fo
r

S
oc

ia
l

W
o
rk

er
s

S
tr

at
eg

ic
P

la
n:

D
ec

em
b

er
31

,
20

20
1

20
19

20
20

20
21

3
S

at
is

fa
ct

io
n

Q
u
es

ti
o
n
s

(T
al

li
ed

by
C

ap
it

ol
P

ar
tn

er
s)

=
89

%
,

77
%

,
84

%

D
et

er
m

in
e

N
ex

t
S

te
p

s

S
tr

at
eg

y
1.

1.
:

C
o
n

d
u
ct

st
ak

eh
o

ld
er

en
g
ag

em
en

t
se

ss
io

n
s

w
it

h
al

l
co

n
st

it
u
en

ci
es

re
g
ar

d
In

g
ch

an
g
es

to
B

E
S

W
an

d
20

19
L

eg
is

la
ti

ve
S

es
si

o
n
s

S
tr

at
eg

y
1.

2:
Im

pl
em

en
t
sy

st
em

s
to

cr
ea

te
an

ef
fe

ct
iv

e
fe

ed
b
ac

k
lo

op
ab

o
u
t

co
m

p
la

in
ts

an
d

sa
ti

sf
ac

ti
o
n

U
p
d
at

ed
W

eb
si

te
re

:
C

h
an

g
es



G
o
a
l2

B
:

B
E

S
W

w
iI

I
h

av
e

tr
a
n

sf
e
rr

e
d

al
l

ap
p
ro

p
ri

at
e

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

fr
o

m
p
a
p
e
r

to
d

ig
it

al
fo

rm
at

s
(b

y
20

23
)

L
ic

en
si

n
g

R
en

ew
al

s
O

nl
in

e
-

F
eb

ru
ar

y
20

19

E
x

ec
u

ti
v

e
D

ir
ec

to
r,

L
eg

al
S

ec
re

ta
ry

II
A

tt
en

d
ed

S
ta

te
of

N
ev

ad
a

D
ig

it
al

R
et

en
ti

o
n

C
o

u
rs

e
in

20
19

L
ic

en
si

n
g

A
p
p
li

ca
ti

o
n
s

W
ill

B
e

O
nl

in
e

in
20

21

D
ep

ut
y

D
ir

ec
to

r
an

d
O

th
er

S
ta

ff
to

A
tt

en
d

N
ev

ad
a

D
ig

it
al

R
et

en
ti

o
n

C
o
u
rs

e
in

20
21

S
tr

at
eg

y
2.

1:
W

or
k

th
ro

u
g
h

an
d

ar
ch

iv
e

al
l

p
ap

er
fi

le
s

as
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
e

E
x
ec

u
ti

v
e

D
ir

ec
to

r
A

tt
en

d
ed

S
ta

te
A

rc
h
iv

es
W

o
rk

sh
o

p
by

20
19

D
ep

ut
y

D
ir

ec
to

r
an

d
O

th
er

S
ta

ff
to

A
tt

en
d

S
ta

te
A

rc
h
iv

es
W

o
rk

sh
o
p

in
20

21

B
oa

rd
of

E
xa

m
in

er
s

fo
r

S
oc

ia
l

W
or

ke
rs

S
tr

at
eg

ic
P

la
n:

D
ec

em
be

r
31

,
20

20
2

O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
—

z
J

B
E

S
W

o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n
s

st
re

a
m

li
n

e
d

,e
ff

ic
ie

n
t,

an
d

Lu
se

r
fr

ie
n

d
ly

.

G
o

al
2

A
:

B
E

S
W

w
il

l
h

av
e

o
n
li

n
e

li
ce

n
si

n
g

an
d

re
n

ew
al

s
(b

y
20

21
)

rJ’
20

19
20

20
20

21



O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
(C

o
n
ti

n
u
ed

)

_
_

_
_

B
E

S
W

o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n
s

st
re

a
n
il

in
e
d
,

ef
fi

cL
,

a
n
d

Lu
se

r
fr

ie
n
d
ly

.

S
tr

at
eg

y
2.

2:
M

ov
e

to
co

m
p

u
te

r-
b

as
ed

sy
st

em
s

as
th

e
b
as

el
in

e
fo

r
d

o
cu

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

fo
r

B
E

S
W

o
p

er
at

io
n

s

In
st

al
le

d
B

ig
P

ic
tu

re
S

o
ft

w
ar

e
P

la
tf

o
rm

in
20

19
al

o
n
g

w
it

h
O

nl
in

e
R

en
ew

al
s

M
od

ul
e

A
d

d
ed

an
d

T
es

ti
n
g

A
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

M
od

ul
e

in
20

20

A
p
p
li

ca
ti

o
n
s

an
d

D
is

c
i p

1i
n

ar
y

M
o
d
u
le

s
O

n
li

n
e

in
20

21

S
tr

at
eg

y
2.

3:
Im

pl
em

en
t

te
ch

n
o
lo

g
ic

al
so

lu
ti

o
n
s

to
p
ro

m
o
te

d
at

a
g
at

h
er

in
g
,

re
te

n
ti

o
n

,
an

d
sh

ar
in

g

E
n

h
an

ce
d

R
en

ew
al

M
od

ul
e

fo
r

D
at

a
G

at
h
er

in
g

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

O
n

g
o

in
g

:
D

et
er

m
in

e
E

n
h
an

ce
m

en
ts

N
ee

d
ed

to
P

ro
m

o
te

D
at

a
G

at
h
er

in
g

B
eg

an
to

G
at

h
er

P
o
li

ci
es

an
d

P
ro

ce
d

u
re

s
fr

om
S

im
il

ar
E

n
ti

ti
es

B
eg

an
to

w
o
rk

w
it

h
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

C
o
ll

ab
o
ra

ti
v
e

R
ev

ie
w

an
d

Im
p

le
m

en
t

R
el

ev
an

t
P

o
li

ci
es

an
d

P
ro

ce
d
u
re

s
G

at
h

er
ed

at
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

C
o
ll

ab
o
ra

ti
v
e

20
19

20
20

20
21

G
oa

l
3:

B
E

S
W

w
ill

h
av

e
al

l
p

o
li

ci
es

an
d

p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s
in

p
la

ce
(b

y
20

22
)

B
oa

rd
of

E
x

am
in

er
s

fo
r

S
oc

ia
l

W
o
rk

er
s

S
tr

at
eg

ic
P

la
n:

D
ec

em
b

er
31

,
20

20



O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
(C

o
n

ti
n

u
ed

)

B
E

S
W

o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n
s

st
re

a
m

li
n
e
d
,

ef
fi

ci
en

t,
a
n

d

Lu
ser

fr
ie

n
d
ly

.

S
tr

a
te

g
y

3
.1

:
I
m

p
le

m
e
n

t
a

E
n
g
a
g
e

A
n

d
B

ui
ld

S
ta

ff
S

ki
ll

s
C

re
at

e
a

P
la

n
to

E
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

S
ta

ff
T

o
in

C
u
st

o
m

er
P

o
si

ti
v
el

y
T

ra
n
sf

o
rm

so
lu

ti
o

n
-o

ri
en

te
d

cu
st

o
m

er
se

rv
ic

e
Id

en
ti

fy
S

o
lu

ti
o
n
s

S
er

v
ic

e
th

e
C

u
st

o
m

er
E

x
p
er

ie
n
ce

ap
p
ro

ac
h

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t

th
e

of
fi

ce

G
at

h
er

P
o
li

ci
es

an
d

R
ev

ie
w

U
p

d
at

e
an

d
S

tr
at

eg
y

3.
2:

E
n

su
re

up
to

d
at

e,
P

ro
ce

d
u

re
s

fr
om

P
o
li

ci
es

an
d

D
is

tr
ib

u
te

B
E

S
W

ac
cu

ra
te

p
o
li

ci
es

an
d

p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s
R

el
at

ed
B

o
ar

d
s

P
ro

ce
d

u
re

s
P

o
li

ci
es

an
d

A
g
an

st
B

E
S

W
P

ro
ce

d
u
re

s
as

P
o
li

ci
es

an
d

A
p
p
ro

p
ri

at
e

P
ro

ce
d

u
re

s

S
tr

at
eg

y
3.

3:
D

ev
el

op
p
o
li

ci
es

an
d

C
o
n
ti

n
u
e

to
W

or
k

in
D

ev
el

op
W

ri
tt

en
C

o
n

ce
rt

w
it

h
S

ta
te

of
D

at
a

P
o
li

ci
es

an
d

p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s
fo

r
m

an
ag

em
en

t
of

N
ev

ad
a

to
G

at
h

er
an

d
P

ro
ce

d
u
re

s
th

at

d
at

a
D

is
se

m
in

at
e

C
o

n
fo

rm
to

S
ta

te
R

eq
u

ir
ed

D
at

a
o

f
N

ev
ad

a
R

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

S
tr

at
eg

y
3.

4:
Im

pl
em

en
t

B
oa

rd
an

d
B

o
ar

d
T

ra
in

in
g

N
ew

B
o
ar

d
S

ta
ff

to
C

o
m

p
le

te

C
o

m
p

le
te

;
E

D
M

em
b

er
s

O
nl

in
e

T
ra

in
in

g
as

st
af

f
tra

ini
ng

T
ra

in
ed

20
18

,
20

19
T

ra
in

ed
O

n
li

n
e

A
p
p
ro

p
ri

at
e

B
oa

rd
of

E
x

am
in

er
s

fo
r

S
oc

ia
l

W
o
rk

er
s

S
tr

at
eg

ic
P

la
n:

D
ec

em
b

er
31

,
20

20

20
19

20
20

20
21



27
C

as
es

(4
2%

)
W

er
e

C
le

ar
ed

of
62

B
a
c
k

lo
g

g
ed

C
as

es

C
o
m

p
li

an
ce

U
ni

t
is

V
er

if
yi

ng
C

as
es

as
p
er

C
la

ri
fi

ca
ti

o
n

of
64

1B
N

R
S

an
d

N
A

C
C

o
m

b
in

ed

R
ev

ie
w

64
1B

w
it

h
N

ew
D

A
G

an
d

U
p

d
at

e
P

er
A

dv
ic

e

D
IS

C
IP

L
IN

A
R

Y
FU

N
C

T
IO

N
O

F
T

H
E

B
O

A
R

D

B
E

S
W

w
il

l
e
n
su

re
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
e,

ti
m

el
y

p
ro

c
e
ss

in
g

o
f

co
m

p
la

in
ts

a
g

a
in

st
li

ce
n

se
e(

s)
.

20
19

20
20

20
21

W
or

ke
d

w
it

h
D

A
G

to
R

ev
ie

w
64

1B
;

D
ev

el
o

p
ed

a
B

o
ar

d
A

p
p
ro

v
ed

P
ri

or
it

y
P

ro
ce

ss
fo

r
C

le
ar

in
g

C
as

es

T
B

D
G

o
al

4
A

:
B

E
S

W
w

il
l

p
ro

c
e
ss

n
ew

co
m

p
la

in
ts

a
g

a
in

st
li

c
e
n
se

e
s

p
er

N
R

S
an

d
N

A
C

(b
y

2
0
2
0
)

G
o
al

4
B

:
B

E
S

W
w

il
l

cl
ea

r
75

%
o

f
b
ac

k
lo

g
g

ed
d
is

ci
p

li
n

ar
y

c
a
se

s
p

ri
o

rt
o

Ja
n
.

1
,2

0
1
8

S
tr

at
eg

y
4.

1:
E

n
su

re
u

n
d

er
st

an
d

in
g

in
m

ak
in

g
th

re
sh

o
ld

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n
fo

r
w

he
n

an
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n

w
ill

go
fo

rw
ar

d

C
le

ar
ed

75
%

of
P

re
-2

01
8

C
as

es
by

Ju
n
e

30
20

20

T
B

D

R
ev

is
e

G
o
al

s

B
oa

rd
of

E
xa

m
in

er
s

fo
r

S
oc

ia
l

W
or

ke
rs

S
tr

at
eg

ic
P

la
n:

D
ec

em
be

r
31

,
20

20



20
19

20
20

20
21

W
or

ke
d

w
it

h
D

A
G

to
R

ev
ie

w
64

1B

In
tr

o
d
u
ce

d
64

1
B

N
A

C
C

h
an

g
es

in
20

19
an

d
G

u
id

ed
T

h
es

e
T

h
ro

u
g

h
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

R
ul

em
ak

in
g

P
ro

ce
ss

B
oa

rd
of

E
xa

m
in

er
s

fo
r

S
oc

ia
l

W
or

ke
rs

S
tr

at
eg

ic
P

la
n:

D
ec

em
be

r
31

,
20

20
6

D
IS

C
IP

L
IN

A
R

Y
FU

N
C

T
IO

N
(C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
)

B
E

S
W

w
il

l
e
n
su

re
a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

,
ti

m
el

y
p

ro
c
e
ss

in
g

o
f

co
m

p
la

in
ts

a
g

a
in

st
li

ce
n
se

e(
s)

.

I

S
tr

at
eg

y
4.

2:
E

n
su

re
in

te
rn

al
co

m
p

li
an

ce
w

it
h

ex
is

ti
ng

N
R

S
an

d
N

A
C

re
la

te
d

to
di

sc
ip

li
na

ry
ac

ti
on

S
tr

at
eg

y
4.

3:
E

va
lu

at
e

N
R

S
an

d
N

A
C

fo
r

ch
an

g
es

to
im

pr
ov

e
th

e
di

sc
ip

li
na

ry
p
ro

ce
ss

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
to

E
n
su

re
C

o
m

p
li

an
ce

R
ev

ie
w

64
1

B
w

it
h

N
ew

D
A

G



FI
N

A
N

C
IA

L
PO

SI
T

IO
N

IN
G

IB
E

S
W

n
e
e
d

s
to

st
re

n
g

th
e
n

ac
co

u
n
ti

n
g

p
ra

c
ti

c
e
s

an
d

c
e
n

su
re

fi
n
an

ci
al

su
st

ai
n
ab

il
it

y
.

S
ta

ff
W

or
ke

d
w

it
h

E
x

ec
u

ti
v

e
B

ra
n
ch

an
d

L
eg

is
la

ti
v

e
C

o
u
n
se

l
B

u
re

au
A

u
d
it

o
rs

to

L
ea

rn
A

b
o
u
t

C
as

h
!

A
cc

ru
al

ac
co

u
n

ti
n
g

sy
st

e
m

B
as

ed
A

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g
S

y
st

em
an

d
F

in
an

ci
al

P
re

se
n
ta

ti
o
n

F
in

an
ci

al
P

ro
je

ct
io

n
s

In
d

ic
at

e
th

at
B

E
S

W
M

ay
B

e
A

bl
e

to
A

ch
ie

v
e

G
oa

l
B

as
ed

5
M

o
n
th

s
o
f

O
p
er

at
in

g
C

o
st

s
by

20
23

fu
n

d
s

in
re

se
rv

e
—

-

B
o

ar
d

M
ov

ed
to

a
S

tr
at

eg
y

5.
1:

S
et

up
an

ac
cr

ua
l-

H
yb

ri
d

S
y
st

em
(C

as
h

!
b

as
ed

sy
st

em
fo

r
ac

co
u
n
ti

n
g

A
cc

ru
al

s)

S
tr

at
eg

y
5.

3:
E

n
su

re
sy

st
em

s
ar

e
in

pl
ac

e
fo

r
fi

sc
al

ac
co

un
ta

bi
li

ty

In
tr

o
d

u
ce

d
L

eg
is

la
ti

o
n

fo
r

F
ee

In
cr

ea
se

s
an

d
64

1
B

N
A

C
C

h
an

g
es

;
G

u
id

ed
N

A
C

C
h
an

g
es

T
h
ro

u
g
h

A
dm

in
.

R
u

le
m

ak
in

g
P

ro
ce

ss

k
ee

p
er

G
o
al

5
A

:
B

y
2
0
1
9

B
E

S
W

w
il

l
co

n
v
er

t
to

an
a
c
c
ru

a
l-

b
a
se

20
19

20
20

20
21

G
o

al
5

B
:

R
ev

is
e

G
oa

l

B
2
0
2
3

B
E

S
W

w
il

l
h

av
e

5
m

o
n
th

s
o

f
o
p
er

at
in

g

S
tr

at
eg

y
5.

2:
S

tr
en

g
th

en
fi

na
nc

ia
l

po
si

ti
on

of
B

E
SW

R
ev

is
e

G
oa

l

—
—

r
—

—

Im
p

le
m

en
t

F
ee

In
cr

ea
se

s

C
o
n
ti

n
u
e

to
M

on
it

or
P

ro
g

re
ss

M
on

it
or

P
ro

g
re

ss

C
o

n
tr

ac
t

w
it

h
B

oo
k-

B
E

S
W

ut
il

iz
ed

te
m

p
b
o
o
k
k
ee

p
er

in
20

19
to

a
ss

is
t

w
it

h
fi

sc
al

ac
co

u
n
ta

b
il

it
y
.

B
oa

rd
of

E
xa

m
in

er
s

fo
r

S
oc

ia
l

W
or

ke
rs

S
tr

at
eg

ic
P

la
n:

D
ec

em
be

r
31

,
20

20


